East Sussex
County Council

LEAD MEMBER FOR TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT

DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Transport and Environment,
Councillor Claire Dowling

MONDAY, 11 DECEMBER 2023 AT 10.00 AM

COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY HALL, LEWES

AGENDA
1. Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 20 November 2023 (Pages 3 - 6)
2. Disclosure of Interests

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under
the terms of the Code of Conduct.

3. Urgent items
Notification of any items which the Lead Member considers urgent and proposes to take
at the appropriate part of the agenda.

4. Alternative Weed Maintenance Trials 2023 (Pages 7 - 102)
Report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

5. Rural Verges as Wildlife Corridors - Trial of Early Season Reduction in Rural Grass
Cutting (Pages 103 - 144)
Report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

6. Community Match Schemes for 2024/25 (Pages 145 - 148)
Report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

7. Changes to the Chargeable Waste Service at East Sussex County Council Household
Waste Recycling Sites (Pages 149 - 156)
Report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

8. Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3

PHILIP BAKER

Assistant Chief Executive

County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent

LEWES BN7 1UE 1 December 2023

Contact Sophie Webb, Governance and Democracy Officer,
01273 337495
Email: sophie.webb@eastsussex.gov.uk

eastsussex.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1

LEAD MEMBER FOR TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT

DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Transport and Environment, Councillor Claire
Dowling, on 20 November 2023 at Committee Room, County Hall, Lewes

Councillor Pat Rodohan spoke on item 4 (see minute 40)
Councillor Stephen Shing spoke on items 5 and 6 (see minutes 41 and 42)

Councillors Godfrey Daniel and Peter Pragnell spoke on item 7 (see minute 43)

36. DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD CABINET MEMBER ON 25 SEPTEMBER 2023

36.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 25
September 2023.

37. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

37.1 Councillor Stephen Shing declared a personal interest in item 6 as someone who is
personally acquainted with the applicants Messrs Peter and Robert Vine and as a serving
councillor and school governor at the same time as the applicants. He did not consider this to be
prejudicial.

37.2  Councillor Peter Pragnell declared a personal interest in item 7 as a Member of Hastings
Borough Council. He did not consider this to be prejudicial.

38. URGENT ITEMS

38.1 There were none.

Page 3



39. REPORTS

39.1 Reports referred to the in the minutes below are contained in the minute book.

40. PETITION FOR A SAFE CROSSING TO HARTFIELD SOQUARE ON THE AVENUE IN
EASTBOURNE

40.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and
Transport.

40.2 Mr David Davies, the Lead Petitioner for the petition calling on the County Council to
consider a safe crossing to Hartfield Square on the Avenue, Eastbourne spoke to highlight the
number of vulnerable people who use the current traffic island to cross the Avenue to Hartfield
Square and safety concerns relating to pedestrians using the current traffic island including the
size of the island, visibility when dark and speed of traffic at this location.

DECISIONS

40.3 The Lead Member RESOLVED to advise the petitioners that a potential scheme to
implement pedestrian crossing facilities to Hartfield Square on The Avenue has been assessed
through the approved High Level Sift process and has met the necessary criteria to be taken
forward to detailed appraisal.

REASONS
40.4 A scheme to improve pedestrian crossing facilities to Hartfield Square on The Avenue

has met the necessary benchmark score to be considered for detailed appraisal and for
possible inclusion within the Capital Programme.

41. TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT IMPROVEMENTS - ALFRISTON VILLAGE

41.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and
Transport.

DECISIONS

41.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to:

(1) Note the comments of the public consultation; and

(2) Approve the proposal for the traffic management improvements as set out in the report to be

taken forward to detailed design and construction as part of the Capital Programme for Local
Transport Improvements.

Page 4



REASONS

41.3 The proposed package of traffic management improvements for Alfriston village are
designed to provide greater comfort and safety for those walking and cycling in the village, and
to encourage drivers and riders to respect the historic environment through which they are
travelling.

41.4 The proposed build-outs at either end of the village will serve as speed-reducing
features and support the proposed 20mph speed limit; address congestion by giving priority to
vehicles exiting the village; as well as provide a gateway on the entry points into the village.

41.5 The proposed improvements to HGV route signing will help address inappropriate use of
the C39 by lorries.

41.6 Following the stakeholder consultation in autumn 2022 and public consultation in early
2023, there is a significant level of support locally for the proposed traffic management
measures in Alfriston village, with only limited concerns highlighted around congestion and
journey times which are outweighed by the benefits that the scheme will provide.

42. APPLICATION TO DE-REGISTER AND REPLACE COMMON LAND 57 AND
COMMON LAND 96, KNOWN AND FOULRIDE GREEN COMMON, LOWER WILLINGDON,
EASTBOURNE

42.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and
Tranpsort.

DECISIONS
42.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to:

(1) Agree to East Sussex County Council becoming a joint applicant in the application already
submitted by Messrs Peter and Robert Vine to the Secretary of State under Section 16 of the
Commons Registration Act 2006 for the de-registration and replacement of a section of
Common Land 57 (CL57) and Common Land 96 (CL96), known as Foulride Green, Lower
Willingdon Eastbourne, to provide access to and egress from a proposed mixed-use
development of land from the A2270 Eastbourne Road at Mornings Mill Farm (granted outline
planning approval under WD/2021/0174/MEA); and

(2) Delegate authority to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport to take all
necessary steps in connection with the application, including but not limited to, signing the
application form, providing evidence in support of the application and any further requirements
of the Secretary of State.

REASONS
42.3 Planning permission was granted for the proposed development in September 2022.
The release of the sections of CL57 and CL96 is necessary to provide access to and egress

from a proposed mixed-use development of land from the A2270 Eastbourne Road at Mornings
Mill Farm.

Page 5



42.4  The de-registered sections of Common Land will be replaced with a larger area of
Common Land with greater amenity value.

42.5 Due to the existence of a Public Footpath East Sussex County Council is required by the
Planning Inspectorate to be a ‘joint-applicant.” However, the public footpath rights are unaffected
by the proposal.

43. HASTINGS TOWNS FUND - GRANT FUNDING AGREEMENT WITH HASTINGS
BOROUGH COUNCIL

43.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and
Transport.

DECISIONS
43.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to:

(1) Approve East Sussex County Council, as the scheme delivery partner, entering into a grant
funding agreement with Hastings Borough Council in relation to the £9,754,458 of Town Fund
allocated for the delivery of the Hastings Town Centre Public Realm and Green Connections
project: and

(2) Delegate authority to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport, in consultation
with the Chief Finance Officer and Assistant Chief Executive, to negotiate and agree the terms
of the grant funding agreement between Hastings Borough Council and East Sussex County
Council.

REASONS

43.3 In 2019 Hastings Borough Council successfully secured £24.4m from the Government’s
Towns Fund programme towards driving the economic regeneration of Hastings to deliver long
term economic and productivity growth, through investment in urban regeneration,
infrastructure, and connectivity.

43.4 The Hastings Town Centre Public Realm and Green Connections project builds on the
character of Hastings and will deliver a high-quality public realm improvement that will support
revival of its centre whilst also bringing nature into the town and promoting active travel.

43.5 The County Council, acting as the scheme delivery body, will enter into a grant funding
agreement with Hastings Borough Council to defray the funding allocation to the County
Council, progress the consultation, detailed design and construction by the end of the Towns
Fund period on 31 March 2026.

43.6 A grant funding agreement will also reiterate precisely what the body is being asked to
do and provide reasons for proposed course of action.

Page 6



Agenda Item 4

Report to: Lead Member for Transport and Environment

Date of meeting: 11 December 2023

By: Director of Communities, Economy and Transport
Title: Alternative Weed Maintenance Trials 2023
Purpose: To report on the outcomes of highway weed control trials and

recommendations for future weed control

RECOMMENDATIONS: The Lead Member is recommended to:

(1) conclude the alternative weed maintenance trials, noting the feedback, outcomes
and challenges; and

(2) agree to continue the use of Glyphosate as weed maintenance on the public
highway until a suitable alternative or additional funding becomes available; and

(3) agree to provide the option for residents to opt into a volunteer maintenance
scheme or District, Borough, Parish or Town Councils to take on weed
maintenance through alocal agreement.

1 Background Information

1.1 On 20 September 2021, Councillor Maples and Councillor Hilton presented a Notice of
Motion to the Chairman calling for the Council to cease use of Glyphosate herbicide in East Sussex
County Council’'s (ESCC) weed control.

1.2 At a decision-making meeting on 22 November 2021, the Lead Member for Transport and
Environment resolved to recommend that Full Council reject the motion as it is not possible to
completely eliminate the use of pesticides but noted that three trials for alternative weed
maintenance techniques in 2022 were planned. The three trials agreed were a Volunteer Streets
weed control trial; a reactive weed removal trial; and a foam stream weed control trial.

1.3 At a decision-making meeting on 19 December 2022, the Lead Member for Transport and
Environment agreed to extend the Volunteer Streets and reactive trials for 2023.

2 Supporting Information

2.1 In line with the County Council Highway Verges and Vegetation Policy, a single treatment
of a Glyphosate based herbicide from the Health and Safety Executive’s Pesticides Register of UK
Authorised Products suitable for use on highways is used.

2.2 The total cost of weed control for a single treatment is approximately £55,000 per year and
this is provided by the Council’s highway maintenance contractor.

Current Weed Maintenance Application and Usage

2.3 Weed growth in channels (the part of the road in front of the kerb) can slow down or clog
up and prevent the highway drainage system from working properly. Weeds also damage paved
surfaces, displace kerbstones and crack walls making maintenance difficult and costly. Weeds can
also have safety implications for pedestrians by causing trip hazards, as well as generally looking
untidy.

2.4 ESCC carry out one weed spray per year on 1,914 miles of channels, footpaths, central
reservations and islands to manage and control vegetation growth on the highway network, using
a herbicide that contains Glyphosate. Spraying is carefully controlled and only applied where weeds
are found, and not undertaken on windy or rainy days.

2.5 The herbicide is applied to weeds in a concentration of 95% water to 5% herbicide, with a
small amount of vegetable oil added for adhesion and spray control.

2.6 The sprayed herbicide mixture enters the plant through its leaves and breaks down the
weed’s cell structure to kill the weed over a few days following application. The application by spray

Page 7


https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/documents/s47239/ESCC%20Alternative%20Weed%20Control%20Trials.pdf

ensures that all parts of the plant are broken down, including the roots, and therefore slows down
any regrowth.

Alternative Weed Maintenance Technigues Trial Continued for 2023
2.7 Three alternative methods of weed control were trialled; volunteer; reactive; and
collaborative road sweeping and strimming in a select location with Wealden District Council.

2.8 The Volunteer Streets and reactive trials were open to all residents of East Sussex to apply
for their streets to be included, with the support of their local Member. Applications were then
reviewed to ensure they were safe locations to be part of the trial. Only residents from Lewes,
Hastings and St Leonards applied and took part.

2.9 The Equality Impact Assessment for these trials can be found at Appendix 1.

Volunteer Streets Trial
2.10  Full details of the trial can be found at Appendix 2.

2.11 The volunteer trial gave residents of a particular street the option to ‘opt-out’ of the Council’s
weed spraying programme and to undertake manual weed control themselves. To be eligible,
agreement from a minimum of 60% of the residents of the street was required and the resident
volunteers would commit to undertake weed removal. An agreement and guidance were drawn up
in consultation with ESCC Insurance team so that volunteers could be insured by the Council.
Following a safety training session and local risk assessment the volunteers were issued with
personal protective equipment and notification documents to be completed when undertaking
clearance works.

2.12 There is an amount of documentation and administration required for volunteers to be
covered by ESCC insurance, and despite this being as streamlined as possible the feedback from
volunteers was still that this was too onerous, and in some instances, there were issues of
documentation not being completed.

2.13 Whilst residents considered the trial largely successful the results varied between roads,
with some roads completely clear and others where large amounts of weeds remained.

2.14 Restrictions of volunteers unable to work in the road meant some channels remained full of
weeds.

2.15 It should also be noted that this approach relies on the time and enthusiasm of volunteers
and requires ESCC Officer time to administer and monitor progress.

Reactive Trial
2.16 Full details of the trial can be found at Appendix 3.

2.17 The reactive maintenance trial worked on the same principle as other highway reactive
services, such as pothole repairs, whereby contractors attended when safety defects were
identified by the Highway Stewards either through routine safety inspections or as a result of public
reports. Where weeds were identified they were removed either by hand-pulling or strimming,
depending on the location and type of weeds present.

2.18 The full impact would take several years to understand, however from the 2-year trial it can
be seen in this limited time how weeds can affect highway infrastructure without weed maintenance.
This was especially highlighted in paved areas.

2.19 Two roads which were part of the reactive trial for 2022 and were not sprayed this year, did
receive several complaints of overgrown weeds and safety issues which had to be rectified.

2.20 Given the ad hoc nature of this approach it was felt that moving to a reactive approach
would most likely lead to an earlier deterioration in highway condition if regular maintenance was
not undertaken and posed significant safety concerns.

Road Strimming and Sweeping Trial
2.21 Full details of the trial can be found at Appendix 4.

2.22 The Road Strimming and Sweeping trial was undertaken in conjunction with Wealden
District Council’s street sweeping team.

2.23 This method was found effective when sites were accessible. However, for half the sites
attempted, maintenance could not be carried out due to parked cars, therefore the method would
Page 8



be difficult to apply across large parts of the county and would not be effective and efficient for the
additional cost incurred.

2.24 The method also only removes the visible part of the weed plant and does not remove the
roots, encouraging rapid regrowth.

3 Summary of Trial Findings
3.1 The benefits and issues found from each trial are noted below.

Volunteer Approach
3.2 The benefits noted included bringing communities together, no Glyphosate use, and
volunteers planning their own weed maintenance taking pride in their community.

3.3 Several issues were encountered particularly with the insurance requirements which
required a large amount of documentation and administration by ESCC Officers and relies on
volunteers completing and returning documentation; restrictions on where volunteers can weed
leading to missed areas; and variation of uptake by volunteers and therefore quality of works
between groups.

Reactive Approach
3.4 The benefits noted include not using Glyphosate.

3.5 Several concerns were noted including a potential cost increase associated with call-outs
to address safety defects, deterioration of assets over time, and negative public perception.

Road Sweeping and Strimming
3.6 The benefits noted include not using Glyphosate and leaving a cleaner finish, although the
approach would need to be repeated several times in line with weed regrowth.

3.7 Several issues were encountered including accessing areas with parked cars, risks of using
strimmer’s in densely parked areas, additional labour costs, coordination of operational staff and
availability and coordination of resources from different authorities.

Additional Research

3.8 Research has been collated from many Councils who have trialled different approaches,
including Acetic Acid, Foam Stream, Volunteers and Weed Rippers. See Appendix 5 for full
research details.

3.9 Research has found that County Councils in England are all in a similar position to ESCC
and are continuing to use Glyphosate to maintain weeds having failed to find a suitable alternative.

3.10 Of the sample of 15 County Councils who advise what weed maintenance they undertake
on their website, 8 undertake more weed sprays than ESCC, and 7 carry out at least 1 weed spray.

4 Proposed Options Going Forward
4.1 The following options have been proposed.

1) To continue to use a Glyphosate based herbicide to efficiently control weeds and continue
to research and explore alternative options as they enter the market.

2) To offer all District, Borough, Parish and Town Councils the option to take on weed
maintenance in their area, similarly to Eastbourne Borough Council, via a local agreement
which allows them to explore and deploy alternatives on a local scale network.

3) To offer the volunteer option for residents who have a dedicated lead to coordinate weed
maintenance, with the option of working under ESCC insurance cover or complying with the
standard highways volunteering process, which requires their own insurance cover but
allows more flexibility. See Appendix 6 for details and requirements of each insurance
option.

5 Conclusion and Reasons for Recommendations

5.1 The Council notes the concerns of Councillors and residents relating to the continued use
of Glyphosate and are committed to finding an alternative means of controlling weed growth,
however the Authority must also meet its statutory duty to maintain a safe and useable highway
network. At the present time, there is no alternative solution that can be effectively used to treat
weeds over a highway network of over 1,900 miles of road channels and footways.

Page 9



5.2 Therefore, it is recommended that the trials are concluded at this stage and that the Council
continues to use a Glyphosate based herbicide to control weeds across the highway network, until
a suitable alternative or additional funding becomes available.

5.3 The Council will also continue to offer the option of volunteer weed maintenance to
appropriately resourced groups of residents and will offer District, Borough, Parish and Town
Councils the option to take on weed maintenance through a local agreement.

RUPERT CLUBB
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

Contact Officer: Dale Poore
Tel. No. 01273 481916
Email: dale.poore@eastsussex.gov.uk

LOCAL MEMBERS
All

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Highway Verges and Vegetation Policy

Page 10



TT abed

East Sussex
County Council

5
2

Equality Impact Analysis Template

Equality Impact Analysis (EqlA) (or Equality Impact Assessment) aims to make services and public policy better for all
service-users and staff and supports value for money by getting council services right first time.

We use EqglAs to enable us to consider all relevant information from an Equality requirements perspective when procuring or
restructuring a service or introducing a new policy or strategy. This analysis of impacts is then reflected in the relevant action plan
to get the best outcomes for the Council, its staff and service-users?.

EqlAs are used to analyse and assess how the Council’s work might impact differently on different groups of people?. EqlAs help
the Council to make good decisions for its service-users, staff and residents and provide evidence that those decision conform with
the Council’s obligations under the Equality Act 20103.

This template sets out the steps you need to take to complete an EglA for your project. Guidance for sections is in the end-notes. If
you have any questions about your EqlA and/or how to complete this form, please use the contact details at the end of this form.

Title of

Project/Service/Policy Alternative Weed Maintenance Trial

Team/Department® Highways

Directorate Communities Economies and Transport

In recent years glyphosate-based herbicides have come under scrutiny and while Glyphosate
is a legal weeding practice in the UK, East Sussex County Council have decided to undertake

. . a trial in 2023 to look at alternative weed control techniques.
Provide a comprehensive

description of your Project
(Service/Policy, etc.)
including its Purpose and
Scope®

T Xipuaddy

Currently ESCC undertake one weed spray per year, of which the weeds are left on site to
break down.

The trials are being undertaken as a volunteer and reactive approach on select roads in
Lewes, St Leonards and Hastings where considerable interest has been received.




21 abed

East Sussex
County Council

The Volunteer approach gives the agreed volunteer streets the option to ‘opt out’ of weem

spraying. This is carried out with the expectation that a minimum of 60% of the residents on
that street agree and that volunteers on the street would in place undertake the weed
maintenance.

The reactive approach will work on the same principle as other highways reactive services,
such as potholes, whereby ESCC would only attend to weed control when areas are identified
by a highway steward inspection or by customer report. Weeds would be removed when
posing a health and safety risk or potential damage to the infrastructure.

The method of control would vary depending on location but would not include use of
Glyphosate.

Feedback from the trials has been generally positive in areas where volunteers are keen to
remove the use of glyphosate. However, there has been significant concern raised around the
issue of weeds causing trip hazards in the pavement, specifically age related in terms of the
elderly and those using prams, where weeds are large and/or restricting pavement width when
overgrown. This has mainly been highlighted in areas with slabbed footways.

In instances where weeds have been causing an accessibility issue, action has been taken to
either contact the volunteer group or instructing removal.

The results will be presented and considered in December 2023.




€T abed

East Sussex
County Council

5
2

Initial assessment of whether your project requires an EqlA

When answering these questions, please keep in mind all legally protected equality characteristics (sex/gender, gender
reassignment, religion or belief, age, disability, ethnicity/race, sexual orientation, marriage/civil partnership, pregnancy and
maternity) of the people actually or potentially receiving and benefiting from the services or the policy.

In particular consider whether there are any potential equality related barriers that people may experience when getting to know
about, accessing or receiving the service or the policy to be introduced or changed.

Discuss the results of your Equality assessment with the Equality Lead for your department and agree whether improvements or
changes need to be made to any aspect of your Project.

Don’t

Question Yes No KNnow

1 | Isthere evidence of different needs, experiences, issues or priorities on the basis of the equality | X
characteristics (listed below) in relation to the service or policy/strategy area?
2 | Are there any proposed changes in the service/policy that may affect how services are run and/or | X
used or the ways the policy will impact different groups?
3 | Are there any proposed changes in the service/policy that may affect service-users/staff/residents | X

directly?

4 | Is there potential for, or evidence that, the service/policy may adversely affect inclusiveness or X
harm good relations between different groups of people?

5 | Is there any potential for, or evidence that any part of the service/aspects of the policy could have X
a direct or indirect discriminatory effect on service-users /staff/residents ?

6 | Is there any stakeholder (Council staff, residents, trade unions, service-users, VCSE X

organisations) concerned about actual, potential, or perceived discrimination/unequal treatment
in the service or the Policy on the basis of the equality characteristics set out above that may lead
to taking legal action against the Council?

7 | Is there any evidence or indication of higher or lower uptake of the service by, or the impact of the X
policy on, people who share the equality characteristics set out above?

If you have answered “YES” or “DON’T KNOW?” to any of the questions above, then the completion of an EqlA is necessary.



East Sussex
County Council

53
2

The need for an EqlA will depend on:
e How many questions you have answered “yes”, or “don’t know” to;

e The likelihood of the Council facing legal action in relation to the effects of service or the policy may have on groups sharing
protected characteristics; and

e The likelihood of adverse publicity and reputational damage for the Council.

Low risk Medium risk High risk
The project has a medium risk due to
the area the trial covers, its
significance and the potential
numbers of people affected.

There is a risk that some of those with
protected characteristics may not be
able to access the highway network as
safely as those without protected
characteristics.

v T abed

There is also the potential that those
with protected characteristics may not
be able to take part in the volunteering
option due to the expectation of what
Is required.

Some people with protected
characteristics may be adversely
affected in terms of safety or ability to
access the highway before we are able
to rectify the issue that has arisen.
(e.g. only able to remove a weed once
it has been reported or steward has a
planned safety inspection)




GT abed

20 ¢

1. Update on previous EqlAs and outcomes of previous actions (if applicable)’

East Sussex
County Council

5

What actions did you plan last time?
(List them from the previous EqIA)

What improved as a result?
What outcomes have these actions
achieved?

What further actions do you need to
take? (add these to the Action Plan
below)

More information on effects of the
alternate weed maintenance techniques
from feedback form and customer
correspondence.

No direct comments were received in
response to the trials in 2022 around this.

The ESH website has been updated to
allow open descriptions to any issues.

Review EqIA following the weed
maintenance season to see if changes
have had a significant impact on those
with protected characteristics.




East Sussex
County Council

53
:

2. Review of information, equality analysis and potential actions

Consider the actual or potential impact of your project (service, or policy) against each of the equality characteristics.

Protected
characteristics
groups under

What do you know?®?
Summary of data
about your service-

What do people tell
you9?
Summary of service-

What does this mean0?
Impacts identified from data and

What can you do?'?

All potential actions to:

. advance equality of
opportunity,

0-44.

long enough with an increased
level of weeds it may mean
pedestrians have to walk in the
carriageway, this will have a
negative impact on their safety
(real and perceived) and could
reduce their ability/confidence to
access the highway network and
consequently the surrounding
area.

the Equality users and/or staff user and/or staff feedback (actual and potential) . eliminate discrimination,
Act 2010 feedback and
. foster good relations
The highways service |eWeeds creating trip As areas will not be sprayed as | To minimise impact on
covers the entire hazards for elderly & standard this may mean there customers with protected
county of East children walking to are times where weeds remain in | characteristics, we will
- Sussex. East Sussex | school. place until reported or inspected | ensure an efficient process
& has a higher e Can look causing a potential trip hazard. | whereby we can respond to
N4 population (6.3% unsightly/messy It may mean children on foot and | issues in appropriate
o higher) of people aged elderly who may be more likely | timescales.
over 65 than the to be using wheelchairs/mobility
average for England scooters etc. may find it more Throughout the trial, safety
and Wales. But below difficult to use the footway. issues will remain our
Age'? average in age groups Potentially if pavement is left priority, with any reports of

trip hazards being picked up
and rectified through
inspections and customer
reports..

East Sussex Highways can
be contacted 24 hrs a day, 7
days a week via phone,
email and post and is readily




)T abed

East Sussex
County Council

Protected
characteristics
groups under

What do you know?8?
Summary of data
about your service-

What do people tell
you9?
Summary of service-

What does this mean10?

Impacts identified from data and

What can yom

All potential actions to:
. advance equality of
opportunity,

the Equality users and/or staff user and/or staff feedback (actual and potential) . eliminate discrimination,
Act 2010 feedback and
. foster good relations
e Older people with reduced accessible for people with all
mobility or in protected characteristics.
wheelchairs/mobility scooters We will monitor and take into
etc. may be more affected by the | consideration any feedback
narrowing of footpaths and roads | received specific to the trial
due to weeds. and use it to support future
reviews and EqlA’s.
East Sussex has a e Narrowed footwa
higher population of by large weeds y
people with a disability c?/eatig tri
than the average for g1p
England and Wales hazards for As per Age
Disability*® with 20.3% in ’ blind/disabled. ' As per Age.
comparison to 17.9% | ® Requeststo
with a long-term maintain Weed_s to
health problem or ensure pat_h_v_wdths
disability. for accessibility.
The government _This protected characteristic
tentatively estimate Ihs not affected .by the
there to be _ _ |ghways services and there
Gender We have received no We follow the County Councils will be no different treatment

reassignment

approximately
200,000-500,000
trans people in the
UK.

specific comments.

equality commitments.

for this group.

We will monitor and take into
consideration any feedback




East Sussex
County Council

What can yom

8T abed

Protected
characteristics
groups under
the Equality
Act 2010

What do you know?8?
Summary of data
about your service-
users and/or staff

What do people tell
you®?

Summary of service-
user and/or staff
feedback

What does this meani®?
Impacts identified from data and
feedback (actual and potential)

All potential actions to:

. advance equality of
opportunity,

. eliminate discrimination,
and

. foster good relations

received specific to the trial
and use it to support future
reviews and EqlA’s.

Pregnancy and
maternity1®

East Sussex Statistics
generally follow the
national average.

¢ Narrowed footway
by large weeds
creating trip
hazards for prams.

e Access for prams,
condition of
pavements, trips.

Those carrying children or pushing
prams, buggies etc. may be affected
by weeds in the footway. Which may
affect the mobility of the wheels.

As per age.

As per age.

Race/ethnicity*®
Including
migrants,
refugees and
asylum seekers

East Sussex’s
population is largely
made up of White
British and Northern
Irish.

We have received no
specific comments,
other than questions
around why we would
need to collect this
information. Of which it
is not mandatory on
consultations or
scheme feedback.

Possible impact that someone may
not be able to access or understand
the trial as written on the ESH
website.

Refer to the ESH
accessibility statement which
advises on how to read
website in alternative
language.

We can also be contacted
directly for alternative
translations.

We will monitor and take into
consideration any feedback
received specific to the trial




East Sussex
County Council

What can yom

6T abed

Protected
characteristics
groups under

What do you know?8?
Summary of data
about your service-

What do people tell
you9?
Summary of service-

What does this mean0?
Impacts identified from data and

All potential actions to:
. advance equality of
opportunity,

the Equality users and/or staff user and/or staff feedback (actual and potential) . eliminate discrimination,
Act 2010 feedback and
. foster good relations
and use it to support future
reviews and EqlA’s.
We have received no
East Sussex follows specific comments,
the national average other than questions We will monitor and take into
Religion or of more than 50% of around why we vv_ould _ cons_ideration any feedba_ck
beliefl? res_ldent of Christian need to pollect thls_ . No adverse effect on this group. recelved.specmc to the trial
belief and more than information. Of which it and use it to support future
25% of residents with | is not mandatory on reviews and EqlA’s.
no religion. consultations or
scheme feedback.
We have received no
specific comments,
East Sussex has a other than questions We will monitor and take into
larger population of around why we would consideration any feedback
Sex/Gender!8 females than males, need to collect this No adverse effect on this group. received specific to the trial,

as per the 2011
census.

information. Of which it
is not mandatory on
consultations or
scheme feedback.

and use it to support future
reviews and EqlA’s.




East Sussex
County Council

What can yom

0z abed

Protected
characteristics
groups under

What do you know?8?
Summary of data
about your service-

What do people tell
you9?
Summary of service-

What does this mean0?
Impacts identified from data and

All potential actions to:
. advance equality of
opportunity,

the Equality users and/or staff user and/or staff feedback (actual and potential) . eliminate discrimination,
Act 2010 feedback and
. foster good relations
We have received no
specific comments,
Government other than questions We will monitor and take into
Sexual estimates that 5-7% of | around why we would consideration any feedback

orientation!®

the population is
Lesbian, Gay and
Bisexual.

need to collect this
information. Of which it
is not mandatory on
consultations or
scheme feedback.

No adverse effect on this group.

received specific to the trial,
and use it to support future
reviews and EqlA’s.

Marriage and
civil
partnership?

East Sussex reflects
the same as
nationally.

We have received no
specific comments,
other than questions
around why we would
need to collect this
information. Of which it
is not mandatory on
consultations or
scheme feedback

No adverse effect on this group.

We will monitor and take into
consideration any feedback
received specific to the trial,
and use it to support future
reviews and EqlA’s.

Impacts on
community
cohesion?!

This project covers
the whole of East
Sussex which
includes all Parish,
Town, District,
Borough Councils and
various local

e Some groups and
residences have a
perception that
some areas have
more money spent
on them.

Ability/confidence to use the
highway and access the community
may be affected if footways are
overgrown.

Negative perception of ESH.

Trial areas were agreed with
residents and the relevant
County Councillor.

The highways service has a
good track record in
engaging with parish

10




East Sussex
County Council

What can yom

T¢ abed

Protected
characteristics
groups under
the Equality
Act 2010

What do you know?8?
Summary of data
about your service-
users and/or staff

What do people tell
you9?

Summary of service-
user and/or staff
feedback

What does this meani®?
Impacts identified from data and
feedback (actual and potential)

All potential actions to:

. advance equality of
opportunity,

. eliminate discrimination,
and

. foster good relations

community
associations,
volunteer groups and
communities.

e Or more affluent
areas have more
money spent on
them.

e Or areas are
forgotten and left to
look messy.

¢ Restricted footway
access due to
overgrown weeds.

Positive of communities working
together on a project.

councils, as well as town
councils in smaller towns, on
a wide range of issue
through the Strengthening
Local Relations (SLR) and
the Community Highways
Initiatives.

11




East Sussex
County Council

5
i

Additional categories

Z¢ abed

(identified locally as potentially causing / worsening inequality)

Characteristic

What do you know???

What do people tell
you?3?

What does this mean?4?

What can you do?°?

Rurality?®

The landscape in East
Sussex is
predominantly rural,
however the majority of
the population live in
urban areas, 58% live
in the coastal urban
areas and a further
18% live in market
towns

e Narrowed footway by
overgrown weeds
creating trip hazards.

¢ Residents have a
perception that rural
lanes can be forgotten
in terms of
maintenance.

e Resident perception
that rural areas are
forgotten.

Lack of footways is more common in
rural areas than urban areas.
Therefore, trip hazards in footways
would be reduced in rural areas.

The rural character of the non-urban
part of the county is a major
attractant to many of those who live
there and especially those who visit
as tourists. Weeds are part of that
natural aesthetic.

The maintenance requirements in
rural areas are often different to
urban areas, because of the
environment, how the road network
is used and expectations about how
the countryside should look.

As per age and
community cohesion.

This trial is only being
undertake in urban
areas and on low-
speed and traffic
streets such as cul-
de-sacs.

If rolled out wider
consideration would
be given to its effect
on rural areas, but
areas with footpaths
on high speed roads
would not be able to
take part.

We will monitor and
take into
consideration any
feedback received
specific to the trial and
use it to support
future reviews and
EqlA’s.

2021

12




gg abed

East Sussex
County Council

What does this mean?4? What cai yo=u EIOZJ; =

As per age.

What do people tell

Characteristic What do you know?2? 23
you=>?

We will monitor and
take into
consideration any
feedback received

East Sussex has an

. . e Ensuring access to
aging population.

Carers Therefore, it could be . 'Llj':(i)pag'ar ds As per age specific to the trial,
inferred that carers will R P Ging i ' ¢ per age. and use it to support
align with this aspect. ¢ d.epglr 'g? |s|3ue|s or future reviews and

isabled / elderly. EqlA’s.
We would continue to
follow relevant ESCC
policies.
22.6% of people in ESH aim to ith
East Sussex do not communicate wit
hold a qualification, Zi?(lel(s::iglzeresalg at';
which is comparable to understanc;I magner
national levels (22.7%) '
but not as low as the People with poor literacy and There is al
South East 19.1%) e numeracy skills may struggle when ere Is always an
Poor . ) Reports of difficulty option to phone the

However it is difficult to contacting the service, particularly if
quantify the level of they are required to complete a form
literacy and numeracy or are issued with a written notice.
because the lack of a
formal qualification
does not mean a
person has poor
literacy or numeracy

service and the form
be completed by a
customer service
advisor instead.

Literacy/Numeracy completing forms

We will monitor and
take into
consideration any

2021 13



vz abed

East Sussex
County Council

Characteristic

What do you know?2?

What do people tell
you?3?

What does this mean?4?

What cai yo=u EIOZJ; =

skills, although it does
makes it more likely.

feedback received
specific to the trial,
and use it to support
future reviews and
EqlA’s.

As per race/ethnicity.

Other groups that
may be differently
affected (including
but not only:
homeless people,
substance users,
care leavers — see
end note)?’

Assessment of overall impacts and any further recommendations?® - include assessment of cumulative impacts (where a change in

one service/policy/project may have an impact on another)

East Sussex County Council, as the Highway Authority, has a statutory duty to maintain the highway (Highways Act, 1980) which

includes footways.

Over time, local authorities including East Sussex County Council, have developed standards in line with national codes of practice and
local policy requirements to ensure safety, serviceability and sustainability needs are met. The safety of highway users and the effect of

weeds on highway drainage and footways are the main reasons for controlling weeds.

There is a statutory duty on service providers under the Equality Act 2010 to take reasonable steps to remove or alter physical features to
improve access for people with disabilities or provide an alternative method of making services available.

2021

14



Gg abed

East Sussex
County Council

Characteristic What do you know?2? What do people tell What does this mean?4? What cai yo=u EIOZJ; =

you?3?
All local authorities have a duty towards biodiversity under the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. Recent guidance
also recommends that vegetation on the highway network should be managed with regard to their value for nature conservation and
biodiversity to encourage more wildlife e.g. in meadow verges. With the effect of Glyphosate on nature in question, the local authority
needs to consider alternative options to weed maintenance. Unfortunately at this stage there are no alternatives which are as efficient
and cost effective as glyphosate.

We cannot fully understand the impact of this change until the trial is complete. Therefore, it was decided to undertake a trial rather than
go to a fully policy change immediately. This allows feedback from those with protected characteristics to be evaluated within the overall
review of the trial and consideration given to any issues raised.

Whilst the trial is ongoing any safety issues will be picked up through the standard channels of inspections and customer reports and
rectified either through the volunteer groups or our staff.

Note: in standard weed maintenance weeds are sprayed once a year. If weeds are reported to be causing a trip hazard a steward makes
an assessment. If they agree that it is a hazard then removal or further spraying is arranged, usually within 28 days (or sooner depending
on the risk).

In volunteer weed maintenance, volunteers have a responsibility to ensure their street is clear from trip hazards. If weeds are reported as
a trip hazard, we would contact the lead volunteer and give them the opportunity to rectify it. Depending on their timeframe/ability to
resolve the issue, the council may decide to make the decision to remove the street from the volunteer list and to undertake our own
maintenance.

In reactive weed maintenance, the council only attends to weed control when areas are identified by a highway steward inspection or by
customer report. Weeds would be removed when posing a health and safety risk or potential damage to the infrastructure. This is usually
completed within 28 days.

Thus far there have been no occasions where this has been an issue in a volunteer weed maintenance street.

2021 15



9z abed

3. List detailed data and/or community feedback that informed your EqlA

East Sussex
County Council

5
i

Source and type of data (e.qg.
research, or direct engagement

Actions to fill these gaps: who else
do you need to engage with?

(interviews), responses to Date Gaps in data (add these to the Action Plan below,
guestionnaires, etc.) with a timeframe)
Possible gap if the Customer Service
Salesforce — customer phone calls Advisor has not logged the Action: goin.g forward remind thg
emails, web reports and letters ' Ongoing mforr_natlon pro_perly. team of t_he importance of capturing
Iogged’ on this system qus[ble_gap with the new contractor |information relevant_ to those with
' bringing in a new system, however protected characteristics.
ensuring data transfer is efficient.
Action: ensure public consultations
Public Consultations various Not all thqse effected will respond to | are as easy as poss_ible to complete
consultations. and are widely published. Ensure a
variety of groups are engaged with.
Possible gap if not all information has
been logged properly.
%ucsetic\)/r;dewlge“qgsa?]rédd%%rgﬁﬁggtsal Ongoing In relation to Hig_hways, people tend Action: increased engagement with
officers to report complaints over stakeholders and customers.
' compliments. Therefore, we are not
informed what is working well and
what we can do more of.
SLR meetings Twice Not all Parish and Town Councils_ take Action; remind Pari.sh and Town
Yearly up the offer to have an SLR meeting. | Councils of the option.

2021

16



/¢ abed

East Sussex
County Council

Customer Surveys e.g. smiley face /
NHT.

Various

Not everyone will respond.

Unhappy residents are more likely to
respond.

Action: increased and

engagement with stakeholders and
customers. Engagement of
contractors measured within the
contract.

2021

17



East Sussex
County Council

5
i

4.  Prioritised Action Plan?®
NB: These actions must now be transferred to service or business plans and monitored to ensure they achieve the outcomes

8z abed

identified.

Impact identified and
group(s) affected

Action planned

Expected outcome

Measure of success

Timeframe

Trip hazards, narrow &

inaccessible footpaths.

Age, disability,
pregnancy and
maternity, rural,
community cohesion.

More information on
effects of the alternate
weed maintenance
techniques from
feedback form and
customer
correspondence.

Review EqIA following
the weed maintenance
season to see if changes
have had a significant
impact on those with
protected characteristics.

Increase in reports of
issues from those with
protected
characteristics.

Over time, it will be
possible to identify
hotspots that routinely
cause problems and a
more proactive
approach can be taken
in these areas subject
to funds being
available.

No negative feedback or
complaints.

Duration of Trial.

(Add more rows as needed)

2021

18




East Sussex
County Council

EqlA sign-off: (for the EglA to be final an email must be sent from the relevant people agreeing it, or this section must be signed)

Staff member competing Equality Impact Analysis: Fenella Lillywhite Date: 27/10/2023
Directorate Management Team rep or Head of Service: Pippa Mabey Date: 27/10/2023
Equality lead: Sarah Tighe-Ford Date: 27/10/2023

6¢ abed

2021 19



0g abed

East Sussex
County Council

5
i

Guidance end-notes

! The following principles, drawn from case law, explain what we must do to fulfil our duties under the Equality Act:

e Knowledge: everyone working for the Council must be aware of the Council’s duties under the Equality Act 2010 and ensure

they comply with them appropriately in their daily work.

Timeliness: the duty applies at the time of considering policy options and/or before a final decision is taken — not afterwards.

Real Consideration: the duty must be an integral, rigorous part of your decision-making process and influence the process.

Sufficient Information: you must assess what information you have and what is further needed to give proper consideration.

No delegation: the Council is responsible for ensuring that any contracted services, which are provided on its behalf need

also to comply with the same legal obligations under the Equality Act of 2010. You need, therefore, to ensure that the relevant

contracts make these obligations clear to the supplier. It is a duty that cannot be delegated.

e Review: the equality duty is a continuing duty. It applies when a policy or service is developed/agreed, and when it is
implemented and reviewed.

e Proper Record Keeping: to prove that the Council has fulfilled its legal obligations under the Equality Act you must keep
records of the process you follow and the impacts identified.

NB: Filling out this EqIA in itself does not meet the requirements of the Council’s equality duty. All the requirements above must
be fulfilled, or the EqIA (and any decision based on it) may be open to challenge. An EglA therefore can provide evidence that the
Council has taken practical steps comply with its equality duty and provide a record that to demonstrate that it has done so.

2 Our duties in the Equality Act 2010

As a public sector organisation, we have a legal duty (under the Equality Act 2010) to show that we have identified and considered
the actual and potential impact of our activities on people who share any of the legally ‘protected characteristics’ (age, disability,
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, and marriage and civil partnership).

This applies to policies, services (including commissioned services), and our employees. The level of detail of this consideration
will depend on the nature of your project, who it might affect, those groups’ vulnerability, and the seriousness of any potential
impacts it might have. We use this EglA template to gather information and assess the impact of our project in these areas.

The following are the duties in the Act. You must give ‘due regard’ (pay conscious attention) to the need to:

e avoid, reduce, minimise or eliminate any negative impact (if you identify unlawful discrimination, including victimisation
and harassment, you must stop the action and take advice immediately).

2021 20



TE abed

East Sussex
County Council

o

Mlll
AN
promote equality of opportunity. This means the need to:

— Remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by equality groups

— Take steps to meet the needs of equality groups

— Encourage equality groups to participate in public life or any other activity where participation is disproportionately low

— Consider if there is a need to treat disabled people differently, including more favourable treatment where necessary
foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not. This means:

— Tackle prejudice

— Promote understanding

3 EqlAs are always proportionate to:

The nature of the service, or scope of the policy/strategy
The resources involved

The number of people affected

The size of the likely impact

The vulnerability of the people affected

The greater the potential adverse impact of the proposed service or policy on a protected group (e.g. disabled people), the more
thorough and demanding our process must be so that we comply with the Equality Act of 2010.

4 Title of EqlA: This should clearly explain what service / policy / strategy / change you are assessing

> Team/Department: Main team responsible for the policy, practice, service or function being assessed

6 Focus of EqlA: A member of the public should have a good understanding of the policy or service and any proposals after
reading this section. Please use plain English and write any acronyms in full first time - eg: ‘Equality Impact Analysis (EqglA)’

This section should explain what you are assessing:

2021

What are the main aims or purpose of the service, policy, strategy, practice, or function?

Who implements, carries out or delivers the service, policy, strategy, practice, or function? Please state where this is more
than one person/team/body and where other organisations deliver under procurement or partnership arrangements.

How does it fit with other services?

21



East Sussex
County Council

o

Who is affected by the service, policy, strategy, practice, or function, or by how it is delivered? Who are the external and

internal service-users, groups, or communities?

What outcomes do you want to achieve, why and for whom? Eg: what do you want to provide, what changes, or
improvements, are required and what should the benefits be?

What do existing or previous reviews of the service, policy, strategy, practice, or function indicate to you?

What is the reason for the proposal, or change (financial, service scope, legal requirements, etc)? The Equality Act requires
us to make these clear.

" Previous actions: If there is no previous EqlA, or this assessment is for a new service, then simply write ‘not applicable’.

8 Data: Make sure you have enough information to inform your EqlA.

Z¢ abed

What data relevant to the impact on protected groups of the policy/decision/service is available?®

What further evidence is needed and how can you get it? (Eg: further research or engagement with the affected groups).
What do you already know about needs, access and outcomes? Focus on each of the protected characteristics in turn. EQ:
who uses the service? Who doesn’t and why? Are there differences in outcomes? Why?

Have there been any important demographic changes or trends locally? What might they mean for the service or function?
Does data/monitoring show that any policies or practices create particular problems or difficulties for any groups?

Do any equality objectives already exist? What is current performance like against them?

Is the service having a positive or negative effect on particular people in the community, or particular groups / communities?

9 Engagement: You must engage appropriately with those likely to be affected to fulfil the Council’s duties under the Equality Act.

2021

What do people tell you about the services, the policy or the strategy?
Are there patterns or differences in what people from different groups tell you?
What information or data will you need from communities?
How should people be consulted? Consider:
(a) consult when proposals are still at a formative stage;
(b) explain what is proposed and why, to allow intelligent consideration and response;
(c) allow enough time for consultation;
(d) make sure what people tell you is properly considered in the final decision.
Try to consult in ways that ensure all different perspectives can be captured and considered.
Identify any gaps in who has been consulted and identify ways to address this.

22



c¢ abed

East Sussex
County Council

o

NAAY
AIAAS

10 Your EgIA must get to grips fully and properly with actual and potential impacts.

The Council’s obligations under the Equality Act of 2010 do not stop you taking decisions, or introducing well needed
changes; however, they require that you take decisions and make changes conscientiously and deliberately confront the
anticipated impacts on people.

Be realistic: don’t exaggerate speculative risks and negative impacts.

Be detailed and specific so decision-makers have a concrete sense of potential effects. Instead of “the policy is likely to
disadvantage older women”, say how many or what percentage are likely to be affected, how, and to what extent.
Questions to ask when assessing impacts depend on the context. Examples:

Are one or more protected groups affected differently and/or disadvantaged? How, and to what extent?

Is there evidence of higher/lower uptake among different groups? Which, and to what extent?

If there are likely to be different impacts on different groups, is that consistent with the overall objective?

If there is negative differential impact, how can you minimise that while taking into account your overall aims

Do the effects amount to unlawful discrimination? If so, the plan must be modified.

Does the proposal advance equality of opportunity and/or foster good relations? If not, could it?

0O O O O O O

11 Consider all three aims of the Act: removing barriers, and also identifying positive actions to be taken.

Where you have identified impacts you must state what actions will be taken to remove, reduce or avoid any negative
impacts and maximise any positive impacts or advance equality of opportunity.

Be specific and detailed and explain how far these actions are expected to address the negative impacts.

If mitigating measures are contemplated, explain clearly what the measures are, and the extent to which they can be
expected to reduce / remove the adverse effects identified.

An EqIA which has attempted to airbrush the facts is an EqIA that is vulnerable to challenge.

12 Age: People of all ages

13 Disability: A person is disabled if they have a physical or mental impairment which has a substantial and long-term adverse
effect on their ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities. The definition includes: sensory impairments, impairments with
fluctuating or recurring effects, progressive, organ specific, developmental, learning difficulties, mental health conditions and mental
illnesses, produced by injury to the body or brain. Persons with cancer, multiple sclerosis or HIV infection are all now deemed to be
disabled persons from the point of diagnosis. Carers of disabled people are protected within the Act by association.

2021

23



v¢ abed

East Sussex
County Council

14 Gender Reassignment: In the Act a transgender person is someone who proposes to, starts or has completed a process to
change his or her gender. A person does not need to be under medical supervision to be protected

15 pregnancy and Maternity: Protection is during pregnancy and any statutory maternity leave to which the woman is entitled.

16 Race/Ethnicity: This includes ethnic or national origins, colour or nationality, and includes refugees and migrants, and Gypsies
and Travellers. Refugees and migrants means people whose intention is to stay in the UK for at least twelve months (excluding
visitors, short term students or tourists). This definition includes asylum seekers; voluntary and involuntary migrants; people who
are undocumented; and the children of migrants, even if they were born in the UK.

17 Religion and Belief: Religion includes any religion with a clear structure and belief system. Belief means any religious or
philosophical belief. The Act also covers lack of religion or belief.

18 Sex/Gender: Both men and women are covered under the Act.
19 Sexual Orientation: The Act protects bisexual, gay, heterosexual and leshian people
20 Marriage and Civil Partnership: Only in relation to due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination.

22 Community Cohesion: potential impacts on how well people from different communities get on together. The council has a legal
duty to foster good relations between groups of people who share different protected characteristics. Some actions or policies may
have impacts — or perceived impacts — on how groups see one another or in terms of how the council’s resources are seen to be
allocated. There may also be opportunities to positively impact on good relations between groups.

22 Data: Make sure you have enough information to inform your EqlA.
e What data relevant to the impact on protected groups of the policy/decision/service is available???
e What further evidence is needed and how can you get it? (Eg: further research or engagement with the affected groups).
e What do you already know about needs, access and outcomes? Focus on each of the protected characteristics in turn. Eg:
who uses the service? Who doesn’t and why? Are there differences in outcomes? Why?
e Have there been any important demographic changes or trends locally? What might they mean for the service or function?
e Does data/monitoring show that any policies or practices create particular problems or difficulties for any groups?
e Do any equality objectives already exist? What is current performance like against them?

2021 24



East Sussex
County Council

o

Is the service having a positive or negative effect on particular people in the community, or particular groups or
communities?

23 Engagement: You must engage appropriately with those likely to be affected to fulfil the Council’s duties under the Equality Act .

Gg abed

What do people tell you about the services, the policy or the strategy?
Are there patterns or differences in what people from different groups tell you?
What information or data will you need from communities?
How should people be consulted? Consider:
(a) consult when proposals are still at a formative stage;
(b) explain what is proposed and why, to allow intelligent consideration and response;
(c) allow enough time for consultation;
(d) make sure what people tell you is properly considered in the final decision.
Try to consult in ways that ensure all different perspectives can be captured and considered.
Identify any gaps in who has been consulted and identify ways to address this.

24 Your EqIA must get to grips fully and properly with actual and potential impacts.

The Council’s obligations under the Equality Act of 2010 do not stop you taking decisions, or introducing well needed
changes; however, they require that take decisions and make changes conscientiously and deliberately confront the
anticipated impacts on people.

Be realistic: don’t exaggerate speculative risks and negative impacts.

Be detailed and specific so decision-makers have a concrete sense of potential effects. Instead of “the policy is likely to
disadvantage older women”, say how many or what percentage are likely to be affected, how, and to what extent.
Questions to ask when assessing impacts depend on the context. Examples:

Are one or more protected groups affected differently and/or disadvantaged? How, and to what extent?

Is there evidence of higher/lower uptake among different groups? Which, and to what extent?

If there are likely to be different impacts on different groups, is that consistent with the overall objective?

If there is negative differential impact, how can you minimise that while taking into account your overall aims
Do the effects amount to unlawful discrimination? If so the plan must be modified.

Does the proposal advance equality of opportunity and/or foster good relations? If not, could it?

O O O O O O

25 Consider all three aims of the Act: removing barriers, and also identifying positive actions to be taken.

2021

25



9¢ abed

East Sussex
County Council

WII Mlll
AN
e Where you have identified impacts you must state what actions will be taken to remove, reduce or avoid any negative

impacts and maximise any positive impacts or advance equality of opportunity.
e Be specific and detailed and explain how far these actions are expected to address the negative impacts.
o If mitigating measures are contemplated, explain clearly what the measures are, and the extent to which they can be

expected to reduce / remove the adverse effects identified.
e An EglA which has attempted to airbrush the facts is an EqlA that is vulnerable to challenge.

26 Rurality: deprivation is experienced differently between people living in rural and urban areas. In rural areas issues can include
isolation, access to services (eg: GPs, pharmacies, libraries, schools), low income / part-time work, infrequent public transport, high
transport costs, lack of affordable housing and higher fuel costs. Deprivation can also be more dispersed and less visible.

27 Other groups that may be differently affected: this may vary by services, but examples include: homeless people, substance
misusers, people experiencing domestic/sexual violence, looked after children or care leavers, current or former armed forces
personnel (or their families), people on the Autistic spectrum etc.

28 Assessment of overall impacts and any further recommendations

e Make a frank and realistic assessment of the overall extent to which the negative impacts can be reduced or avoided by the
mitigating measures. Explain what positive impacts will result from the actions and how you can make the most of these.

o Countervailing considerations: These may include the reasons behind the formulation of the policy, the benefits it is
expected to deliver, budget reductions, the need to avert a graver crisis by introducing a policy now and not later, and so on.
The weight of these factors in favour of implementing the policy must then be measured against the weight of any evidence
as to the potential negative equality impacts of the policy.

e Are there any further recommendations? Is further engagement needed? Is more research or monitoring needed? Does
there need to be a change in the proposal itself?

29 Action Planning: The Council’s obligation under the Equality Act of 2010 is an ongoing duty: policies must be kept under review,

continuing to give ‘due regard’ to the duty. If an assessment of a broad proposal leads to more specific proposals, then further
equality assessment and consultation are needed.

2021 26



Appendix 2
Appendix 2 East Sussex

County Council

Post Project Review

eastsussex.gov.uk

Project Title Volunteer Weed Maintenance
Author Fenella Lillywhite

Date 16/10/2023

Version 0.1

Purpose of This Document

To collate and review the information and feedback from the trial of the volunteer weed
maintenance undertaken through the weed maintenance season of 2023.

To understand the successes and issues faced by volunteers undertaking weed
maintenance on select roads.

To present the outcome and conclusions made from this trial.

Trial Overview

The volunteer weed maintenance gave streets the option to ‘opt out’ of glyphosate weed
spraying. This was done with the expectation that a minimum of 60% of residents of that
street agree to be part of the trial and that volunteers would in place undertake some form of
weed maintenance.

As a requirement to come under East Sussex County Council insurance an agreement and
guidance were included outlining safety and expectations. Training and PPE were provided
as well as notification documents to be completed by the volunteers to let ESCC know when
they are going to carry out the works and when they have been completed.

This was only an option on cul-de-sacs or residential roads with low-speed limits. See
Appendix A for list of roads who completed all documentation to become a volunteer street
or opted to continue from 2022.

Benefits Noted

Brings communities together and creates more community cohesion.
No Glyphosate used.

Appeases residents against use of glyphosate.

Gives residents opportunity to influence what happens to their road.
Volunteers self-scheduling, rather than relying on ESCC to schedule.

Issues Noted

e Insurance requirements /volunteer resistance to completing the documentation.

e Variation in completing notification documentation, some roads completed no
documentation all year and others submitted documents which had only been
partially completed.

e Variation of quality of works (See Appendix B for supervisor feedback and C for
images).

e Large amounts of admin and supervision by ESCC officers and associated costs.

Page 37



Appendix 2

e Restrictions on where volunteers can weed e.g. not in road / has to have a
pavement, meaning some areas left un-weeded.

e Public perception of volunteers weeding e.g. Highways are not undertaking works
they are responsible for.

¢ Weeds may not have been fully removed e.g. roots may still be intact meaning they
come back worse or weeds are allowed to seed and spread.

e Disposal of weeds and soil costly for both ESCC and/or volunteers.

Insurance

This trial continuing on from 2022 was the first time ESCC Highways had insured volunteers
under ESCC insurance.

The standard highways volunteering process requests volunteer groups and/or Parish and
Town Councils to obtain their own £10million Public Liability Insurance instead, this means
there is less documentation and no notification needed to ESCC as to when works will be
undertaken.

Documentation

Therefore, to undertake this trial and insure volunteers under ESCC insurance, volunteers
had to meet the requirements of East Sussex County Council insurance provider, including
documentation for certain aspects of the process.

An agreement had to be signed by all volunteers which outlined expectations, what can and
cannot be done and provided a standard risk assessment. Training was carried out via a
PowerPoint presentation, narrated by an ESCC Officer.

Initially the ESCC insurance provider requested an ESCC officer to be onsite at all times
whilst the volunteers undertook work. However, there was not enough officer resource to
meet this expectation and it was agreed that completing a notification and completion
document would meet that requirement, however ESCC officers would need to undertake
ad-hoc inspections.

For 2023 the documentation was reviewed and although the same information was still
requested, it was edited to be simpler.

The documentation has received criticism throughout the trial and there has been a
reluctance to complete it.

It was found this year that some roads never completed any notification documentation,
therefore suggesting either no weed maintenance has been undertaken on that road or it
has been undertaken without insurance requirements. Others submitted documentation
which was only partially completed, late or provided non-specific dates.

A small proportion of the volunteer streets provided all documentation on time and correctly.
See Appendix D for template documents volunteers must complete.

Weeding Restrictions

Although the roads were low-speed, low-traffic roads, volunteers were not allowed to work

within the carriageway or anywhere there was not a footpath. This has therefore created an
imbalance of weeds in some places such as the channels.

Page 38



Appendix 2

Officer Time

Resource for the trial was utilised from the ESCC Highways Contracts Management Group.

It was found that the initial set up of reviewing applications, responding, and sending the

relevant documentation at the beginning of the year was the most time consuming. Followed

by correspondence with volunteers over documentation and surveying of the streets by

supervisors.

The trial included 12 roads, if more roads were to take up this approach it could quite quickly

become resource intensive.

Feedback from Volunteers

Generally, the feedback received from volunteers has been positive, specifically around
bringing communities together and not having glyphosate used on their road.

A supervisor spoke to a resident who advised that residents should be weeding outside their
own property but some are some not. Another resident in a different street asked if a section

could be strimmed due to it being two foot high.

It has been found that if a road has a strong lead volunteer to coordinate works or County
Councillor involvement, they are more likely to have been successful with the trial.

The following are the main issues which have been raised:

Issues

ESCC Response

Complicated documented
process

The process is in place to meet ESCC insurance
requirements.

Alternatively, the standard Highways Volunteering
process is available, whereby volunteers provide
alternative insurance cover, and as such requires less
documentation.

Issues disposing of weeds.

Requests for bags to dispose of weeds, where residents
did not have a green wastebin.

Some groups were provided with green waste bins paid
for by ESCC. Going forward if this was required on a
large scale, a discussion could be held with relevant
District and Brough Councils to see how this can be
managed or contributed to.

Customer Cases

Year Number of cases to do with weeds in trial
areas.

2023 7

2022 9

2021 4

2020 6

2019 8

Page 39




Appendix 2

There has been no noted increase in customer cases due to the trial.
General Feedback

Although standard case numbers have remained similar to pre-trial levels, the public have
voiced their opposition through other routes, such as directly to Members, on Highways
Facebook posts, the complaint process and submission of Information Requests.

The general consensus is that roads with high resident interest and a strong lead volunteer
have successfully organised themselves. Concern has been raised around the reduction in
interest from other roads, manifested in the lack of maintenance on those streets.

It should be noted that there is a mix of public opinion in terms of how weeds should be
maintained, and concerns are more frequently being raised for reasons such as
accessibility, safety and aesthetics rather than the technique used.

Contract and Commercial Supervisor Visits

The Contract and Commercial Supervisors responsible for inspecting the trial locations have
noted that generally the locations which have been undertaking the trial for 2 years have
larger weeds. However, they have also found deterioration in some of the other trial
locations.

Areas with paved footways are more prevalent to weeds, making it harder to maintain.
Although some groups have managed to keep areas clear or at least ensure that the
pavement has adequate width.

Where volunteers are not able to weed in the road the channels can be seen to have
increased weed growth in comparison to the footway.

One of the main issues highlighted is large weeds abutting private property and the highway
decreasing the width of the pavement.

See Appendix B for supervisor feedback and C for images.

Other Costs
PPE

For 2023 30 sets of PPE were purchased over the course of the trial for volunteers. The sets
included gloves, goggles and hi-vis jackets. The total cost was £150.56.

The total amount of PPE sets across both years purchased was 91 at a total cost of £406.
Only one group returned PPE from the previous year.

Green Waste Bins

After consultation with Lewes District Council, ESCC paid for 3 volunteer roads to receive
green waste bins for a year at a cost of £35 each, totalling £105.

Outcome & Conclusion

There has been mixed results in terms of the quality of maintenance on volunteer roads as
shown in the photos and feedback from the supervisors.

Page 40



Appendix 2

The insurance paperwork for volunteer groups remains the main issue with volunteer weed
maintenance. With some roads not completing any paperwork for the year and others not
completing the documentation fully. The information requested cannot be reduced due to
the requirement from the Insurance Providers for ESCC insurance.

It is therefore suggested that should the volunteering option go forward the ESCC Insured
Volunteering and the Standard Highways Volunteering are run alongside each other. See
Appendix E for details.

This would be with a very clear understanding that to come under ESCC insurance the
documentation must be completed. If it is found that what is being provided does not satisfy
the requirements of ESCC then as a last resort the road would be returned to the standard
weed maintenance schedule.

Or alternatively the group can look to come under an external insurance through the
standard highways volunteering process whereby an agreement and insurance must be
provided by volunteers, but no further documentation is needed. This would also allow a
group to work across multiple streets. ESCC would just need to be informed of what streets
to remove from the weed maintenance programme.

Safety remains the top priority for ESCC and any reports of accessibility or safety issues
from volunteer streets would necessitate ESCC taking back the maintenance.

Appendix A — Volunteer Road Locations

e |Leicester Road — Lewes

Page 41



Appendix 2

Lower South Road — Hastings
New Road — Lewes

South Street — Lewes

South Way — Lewes

St Thomas — Hastings
Tackleway — Hastings

Talbot Terrace — Lewes (with Pelham Terrace, Toronto Terrace)
Alma Terrace Hastings

Oban Road Hastings

Clinton Crescent Hastings
Markwick Terrace Hastings

Page 42



Appendix 2

Appendix B — Supervisor Visit Feedback

Road

When

ESCC Supervisor
Review 24/08/2023

Lower South Road -
Hastings

Volunteer 2022
& 2023

Green/Amber
Condition

3 small areas have
been cleared rest of
street have small
weeds.

St Thomas — Hastings

Volunteer 2022
& 2023

Amber Condition.
Few small areas have
been cleared but over
all very untidy and a
lot of weeds.

Tackleway — Hastings

Volunteer 2022
& 2023

Green/Amber
Condition.

Small area has been
untouched small
weeds in rest of street

Barnfield Close
Hastings

Volunteer 2023

Green Condition
No weeds Found.

Alma Terrace Hastings

Volunteer 2023

Green Condition
Little to no weeds
found.

Oban Road Hastings

Volunteer 2023

Green/Amber
Condition

Large areas clear of
weeds, however few
areas where weeds
have been untouched

Clinton Crescent
Hastings

Volunteer 2023

Amber condition
Large areas where no
weeds have been
found but some areas
remain with large
amount still present.

Markwick Terrace
Hastings

Volunteer 2023

Green Condition
Very little weeds
found.

Leicester Road Lewes

Volunteer 2022
& 2023

Amber Condition
Varying levels of
weeds outside
properties and along
walled edges growing
into footway.

New Road Lewes

Volunteer 2022
& 2023

Amber Condition
Weeds along edge of
footway majority of the
street.

South Street Lewes

Volunteer 2022
& 2023

Amber Condition
Varying levels of small
weeds outside

Page 43




Appendix 2

properties and along
walled gardens.

South Way Lewes Volunteer 2022 (Green Condition
& 2023 Excellently maintained
- no weeds found
Talbot Terrace (with Volunteer 2022 [Red Condition
Pelham Terrace & & 2023 Large amounts of
weed around these 3
Toronto Terrace) Lewes streets. Impacting

space on footway.
Especially along side
of walled area of
Toronto Terrace.

Page 44



Appendix 2

Appendix C — Images from Supervisor Visit

Lower South Road Hastings

G abed

Page 9 of 29



Appendix 2

St Thomas Hastings

9t abed

Page 10 of 29



Appendix 2

St Thomas Hastings

Page 11 of 29



Appendix 2

ackleway Hastings

W . sl

8t abed

Page 12 of 29



Appendix 2

ings

ield Close Hasti

Barnf

Page 49

Page 13 of 29



0gG abed

Appendix 2

Alma Terrace Hastings

Page 14 of 29



Appendix 2

Oban Road Hastings

TS abed

Page 15 of 29



Appendix 2

Clinton Crescent Hastings

26 abed

Page 16 of 29



Appendix 2

0
oo
o

=
7]
(1]

B
Q
O
©
-
©

=

xZ
=
s
£
=

Page 53

Page 17 of 29



G obed

Appendix 2

-]
South Street
B =

1

g

Page 18 of 29



GG abed

Appendix 2

Page 19 of 29



9g abed

Appendix 2

Page 20 of 29



Appendix 2

Page 21 of 29



Appendix 2

Page 22 of 29




Appendix 2

Appendix D — Documents

Volunteer Streets Weed Maintenance Agreement

Volunteer Streets Weed
Maintenance
Guidance & Agreement

East Sussex
County Council

Contents
Step By Step - What i Expect Overdew
e to Ay -

Rview your Stroet
enlunteer wesd mainterance. Such as, 30mph or below, residential, must have
footpaths, must nat induce sharp comers or bends.

Lead Volumtaar Sign

person will be the point of contact for ESCC i there are any problens, such as
reports of avergrown weeds from the public.

Resident

1o opting cut af Weed Mainterance ta progress. This does not mean they al
e to undertake weed malnbenance but shows that theug oty of the street

Training
Traing will be provided to al walunieers through a pre-recorded presenation,

rotify ESCC that this has been complebed by al
Personal Protective Equigmant

ESCC will prowide the volunteer graup with PPE, which will inchade hives ackets,
aoqgles, and gloves.

Declaratian of Wosks

this to ESOC at beast 7 cays prior o undertaking any works, gach time.

On-site Wark Farm

ESCC wathin 2 cays after undertaking ary works, sach time.

ESCC Rewlow

Step By Step — What to Expect Overview

The strent must mest certain critena before being accepted 3s 2 possile strest for
up
Arepresentative from the read will need ko sign up to become Lead Velunbeer, This

The Lead Velunkeer must get ai least 6% of the resldents liing an the raad sgned

agree.
a - iy e cf eh

Voluntaer Sign Up

Gnce the streat has been accepted the Lead Velunteer will need te ensure everyana
o wizh ke part with Volunteer
Bgresment.

wihiich can be watched at the volunteer's keisure. The Lead Volungeer will need to

Thae Lead Wedungeer will need to complete the Declaration of wrk Form and send

The Lead Velunkeer will need in complete the Onsite Work Form and send this o

E5CC superdsers the area for any |
Aroup.

Dutcoms

6000000 00O

o the graup.

Thee Volurteer Streets project will be reviewsd at the end of 2023 and a dectsion
will be made as ta whether it cantinues. This declsion, once macde, wil be fed back

How to Apply

Wikhin the decument burdle you wil find the
“applicaticn Farm', This includes the sign-up
shoet for e leasd valunbeer and log shest for
dgnatures.

The Lead Vielunteer is the representative from
the raad and will need to complete the Lead
ohunbeer Aegisiration form. This person wil be
the point of contact for ESOC.

The Lead Vlunteer will need to get at leat 6%

o the restlerts Ining on tha road spned Lp o e P
b "

ance complated, far revew, phaase send o

cantract: gouuk

5CC will then upate yau x o whether the
application has been successhl.

Volunteer Sign-Up and Agreement

Everyone wha wishes to take part in the weed
mainenance an your street must sign the

agresment within hiz document. This cutl
wwhat can and eannt be done. Flezze read fram
PagEs.

nce sirec please send back 3 copy of the
sgned page from the agresment. This can be
sert 35 3 scan, 3 phato, or 3 hard

ESCC wall then review these and ensure we:
Fave all the requested details.

Page 59

Page 23 of 29




Appendix 2

Training and PPE

Within the document bundle you wil see a
presentation named ‘volunteer wees
mainienance training’. The presentation has
sound and wil rall Ehrough by itself.

This must be watched by all volunieers and ESCC
rectified by the LY that it has been watched.

anee the training has been complated ESCCwill
arrarge collection or delvery af the PP,

Declaration of Work

Teo it the recuiremants set cut by cur
reurance Frovicer and allaw valunbeers o be
incured this farm must be completed before you
plan to undertake weed m

The dedaratian af work form can be found in

your dorument bundle and (s ta be completed I
ang subrmitted by the Lead Violunteer. A

Onsite Work Form

Tomeet the requirements set out by our Geamedal Infeamation
reurance Frovider and to = 1
InGured this farm must be completed when on [E— |
dore y {
[ — 1

The geeskis wark form can be found nyour 1

document bundle and s to be comgleted and
submitted by the Lead Vokurteer.

Eresures et all vesliritesers heve read this document.

Krwra i b chsal with #rcjuiries and hew to repert sesidents o incdents t ESCE.
Eresures yesus inberstand the fisk assessrent and method sttement as sutinesd in s
-

Vidmtiers ane sy parmitied b work on pavements and Setpaths.

Viodmteers ane ot pemitie & wark an the vehicular camageway itself

Vidteers shaudd not be put, or put yoursell, 2t ary furthes risk than  pedestrian wauld
Ly usineg the pavament.

The grourd st rat be broken under any sSreumstanes.

Vioimtiers are not permitiad in any cirumebances f wark at height.
Viodmtiers are ot permitiad 4 Lss powe bosls,

Vidmtiers mist st undertake sy ek it may exacerbats any health conditisn.
Viodtiers ane ot pemitied & Lndertake any raintenance an gress verges o edges.

ESCC reserves the right o nequire valuntser activities to stap and ey withdra permission if
the tasks are rat baing camisd aut appropriassly or § any of e councils eonditiors ar
resiristiars are net being complied with

Plase iste, if the cordians cutined i this sgreemant are rat being falowed, volntsens wil
st b eonered by East Sussex Caunty Caursl insuranss,

Before

The Declaration of Works Form | provided in the document bundb) must be compleied
st D werrking iy price ko ary works being corried oub This alen miet be sbmitad

eaach time wark is bo be urekeriahen,

During

a

.

ezt aery werk bagire the On-SHE Work FONM [provided in the decurment bunde] must
be complated. This must be completed e time warks are carred o,
Errsure ans i be maintained is thorowghly checked for animals, nesting binds and other
chsncsians belore commencing.

ey =houid be checked for hazardous waste, Avoid cearance coss o polendaly
herzardous wersae. Matify your relevant District o Borough Councl if waste is found
Consider what PPE is nseded for sxenple; gloves, boots, hand deaning meteral, first
i hit. ESCC will pravide Hivis jackets, gouss and gogles.

vz be aware of your sumoundings.

1Fat ary poind you el it is Unsate 1o continue, you must siog,

|F shere is an Inchdent om the Highway, no meatter how minoe, voluntess asks must

ard the incident must be reported as soon as passble 1o the Highways Contact Sentre
{an 0345 E08 0193) wha will notify e approprishe oficers.

After

.

.

Check that $ie ares or path is dear of shsinistion, in paicular any sut stems that may
herver sprung L whan cuttings have been removed.

Al waste o arising's must be remaved fram site and disposed of aparopriately and in
accordance with relevant legiskason.

Eresures all valunssers sores warks are complated and | site ot the sams time,
Eresure {he DoCiration of Warke FOM {prevised in she dacumert bundle) is submitted
1o ESCC

Page 60

The Agreement

Nature of Work

The wirk whiich wil b Lndertaken is the remaoval of weeds and plarts Fom e foatway an the
agrie riad. The velurkeers are not parmitied S work sn the camiageway. The arsings Fom these
wirks are % be disposed of by volinteers.

These warks are only b be ndertaken i1 the agreed ares an the footway, No grass cuting of
werges e hedge cutling wil be Lrderiaken,

Powser 1ools are not 1o be used.

Please rate that sur msirers da have the ght o rehuse cover if they befiews we are cperating
cubside of cur cwn agreed sk guidancs and therelars it is impertat o Sollow the agreed
rulesionde o ensune we minimise any losses.

Any wakinbesrs who help with the weeding do 93 exprassly on the basis that the lead valuntesr
choes rat assume s duty of care e thaeir faliow velunteers and will not be hald paonally
liable ir herrse=pl el @n injury or loss ocours 1o anather voluntesr. Each voluneer must teke
resparaibility far their own persanal health & safely and i in any douin should rase queries ot
i with ESCC.

Why do we maintain weeds?
Weed mantenances an the highwy is necessany for the fallowing reasons:
« Vidsed greh in reedd gulies and charnels san slow diwn and prevent ur drainags
systers fram weeking

*  Wiieads can damage paved surfaces, disnlace perbeiones and crack walls making
mantenance difficult and costhy.

o Wiseck can crase i heards
® Ve greh ean traps itter s dabis,

Volunteers

The Lead Valureer (V] camnct work alone and will need to ke supparted by ather valuntssrs,
Al voluieens wil need o compiete the Valanbeer Fegisiratizn Fom and the Ly wil nesd ta
subimit these signed to: gontracts manapemenipoupessiausser oo ik

Training for Volunteers

Al volunteens wil need o undsrake Healh and Safety trmining provided by ESGC 5.
This: rairireg is pra-resardad and part of the document Bursdie.

Thes L will nosty ESCE this has been completed before any warks commence.

Guidance for Volunteers

* Kriow the locations and reguirements of the task and understand the condisons nder
wihich they are f be carted tt oising the acoeptable sandard and frish,
Al veluntaers st start and fiiish the warks at the same time, And must net week aleos,
Ervsure that all wluniaers ace wil beisfied and that ey are aware of and follow stasiiory
regUatians and quiddines.

]

Monitoring

The council reguiary monfars the concition of highwey asssts throughout East Susses, Contract
and Commerdal Supervisars [ESCG staf) ar Commercial and Cost Control Officer (ESCC Staf)
will camy out spot

e rtice thiat waseds are af an urecseptable level ar pose a patential safety hazard, then we'll
qetin teuch with the LV 4o disciss how o remove them and affer support as approgriste. i the
st ratmiin sfler an apreed pasiod thean, 35 @ kst resart, the raad will be put Back o the
ghysihesate spraying scheduls until 3 suitable stemative san b found.

IFESCC st ar hawe reports that the vallnteer group is pot working safely, the veluniser groug
will et b covered by East Sussex Courty Caundl Irsurance, asked to stop sy warks and the
ares will bt Bk e the ghyheosate spraing scheduls until 3 sutsble shamative sn be
fourid.

It iss impesrastives thast all formmes are submitted within the timeframe given. IF the concitions outined
i this agresment ane not being followed, volurisers wil nat be covered by East Sussex County
Council nsurance.

East Susssx Courty Council staff will then undertake checks after the works have comgileled.

Complaints and Customer Contact
Complaings and customer cortact will be dealt with through cur Highways Contact Cerine.

I wes riceive an incressed level of eemplaints about the weeds an the agreed raad this wil
trifgger a reisw i et et abave in the moniring secin.

i member of the pusiic woulkd lke 1o contact us, please provide them with ane of the Salieeing
oankacts:

Phene: (45 608 0193

Email: customanBeastsissedtighways. com

The fellaing email atdress is snly for valunissr e, for sxample § you want to noty us of
samething ar hie 4 questicn:
Errsal: gontracts

Mearest Hospital

Enstre yiou know S location of the nearest bospital. This can be found an fie NHS website by
sarching your pestoode: hitps: v, s, Lk service-search haspital

e Lk

Page 24 of 29



Appendix 2

VOLUNTEER REGISTRATION FORM
TFIrst Hame | THlE |
[Surmames | TOE |
[ Eddraes

Poetcode:

[Phone numbar
[Emal
[Cpiionar Plesse provide detalis oT who o conect nEn emengency |
Tame
[ Eddraes
[Telephone o

y e 10 Supp

dacument.

form, thes Lesyd Valunbeer i confirming tha; they ane
Violunteers carmying out voluntees

itk processes ane in placos with the volunieers o ensue o
ara carried ouf in socordance with the resrictisng and canditions

¢ any agraed v
sat aut in this Guidance:

pnad |

Data

and paraonal

collectsd on forms

‘Whese we ask you for personal information through a form, this information will anly be used for

the purpose indicated and it wil be held in a
purpess withaut yaur pemissicn and wil not

cure manner, It will not be used for any ather
hetpt for onger than necassary,

By completing This famm you & ghing consent for us 1 hold your dezails in fine with

0313 PrOTeCTion (BgISIFTON. Plasse see our prive:

It vt s ey Uk

cy policy for further information:

Pleast s our Privacy Notice far Highways Vilunteers:

it waaw. srsten camip

penocehighways-wolunieens

Declaration of work for

m

8 IO M
conirschs

At lsast 2 working d

Declaration of Work

omp

mEsTigrod)

8 before the work Commances.

a I
fecgeel bt bl

0
uk -

General Information

[il:] Mg 3 '3 OWTI

D=te Weed Malnienanca will ba
undertaken

Humbar of Voluntesrs who will b=
Invobead

Works Type

Wieed Mantenance

FlgTveay Typs

Foabway

DCATIon Bara [] |

Preparatio

n for Work

& anyone S18e COnmantly working at ihe
elta?

Washng - Hyes, works cannol stant undl
others hone |eft sibe.

T50 you Tores=s Ware Delng any
abafructions that would stop you fram
warking?

Tesino - T yes, please eplain

Do you have the comect PPE for the
Jon?

Tesmo - [F no, please axplan

& Na-naad and o rd

agreament.

Fesno - M na, works canral ga ahed.

Figned by Lead voluntesr

Diafe Fomm SUbmitied o CWG

Page 61



Appendix 2

Onsite Work Form

Thiz Torm must
contrachs.

On Site Work

comp E

o]

Form

bR Ok .

General Information

me Al
Tiats
CEad woluniesr
Works Typs | Weed Manienance
FIgRweEy Typs [ Foatay
OCETIaN CEIET 08|
Point of Work Risk Assessment

2 acooes | EBrens BAlE Y

Ve

I i, et st wetarkes.

N anyons elae working at te BkeT

Yesha
1F ¥k, do rat start works.

ol perrnilied

" Bl s are
DO o sy ’ IP.'\.\-DI"HJH”'E Reasad

T weher Conamons

Westher Condifions stitabile for e sk 1o be

campleted

Lead Volunteer Checklist

Fumber of Yolunieers Freeent ([RGLLV]

Are works 3afe to Commence?

Voluntears are working In groups of & Yes THo™
minimum of 2

Volurteers hiave recelved 8 salety Talk Ves T
bafars worke: Nava begun.

i Ve W 5 area ang Ve Na—
miecuseed any potential nazerds.

VolUntears UnDarstand nrormaton KT =N
outtingd in tha sgreament.

PCINE of Work ek Gageeament KT
complated.

Tes [Ho™

“Howarks ane not safe o commance please
nesily ESCC why.

Risk to be controlled 55 Brasis

Risk to be controlled as &ras is reasonable pradicable

pradicable

e any Gne Slopping T e I answared ne toary of the sbhove, do
you from warking? ek start warks
If ¥as, do rat start works,
conirm Landesrs 6 NEZarcs
8 Thare evidenca of protecied specles Weslhla and controks aseocizted with the
oF Invaeive plante? activity.
L IF Xak, cho roat st wiorks,
Signad by LY
= your equipment 1L 10T pUrpoee? Vs gnad by
1 ey, s et st venrks.
[ﬁ)‘wla\l&ﬁﬁwﬂeﬁlv&mrm YesMa
7
oo I na, da not Start warks
Underafood by
Maln Hazards Control
Volunfsers
Elip= Trips and Falls Keep Sre Tily
Manual Handling
gaad handling protocols.
Risk Assessment — S— - ]
[Contact | EDEere] @_ |
[ | Valuraser W Tisk Asseni o 1
[Risk Ansessment Ho.
Part & - Infroguctory [Fari & - Infearated Risk Asassament |
ntormaticn T e
eeds Fam Eas! Sussex Courty Coundl IOk o overcome o Ham =
Operation b ides. ThiS WOk 5 10 De. un 1 various ——— —
B BEE
o may e | it Risk: Telyresul 1 | & EmTs g
[ o et = K s |
5032 IR
teted HSI M 002 Volurteer Weed Maireanance
Rrvan corvdins shodd
[Tt byt Shock e amigred o meitoring ske.
1 Vokintesrs P Sk z known condiions and arfidotes EpPers | 5 | 1 | &
shoutd e ceckre 1o e dufy saipervisar
Extremes of Hymotherris, heat
2 cigfnot | Vounteers | sk, detyaon, | 3| 3 | 8 afsfa
weather surtsurn, Etigue
WAkt i RISK ASSSmant TEmGiatas are SvNatic WM 112 GHE Meneganient Sy3tam for Geaiog will Spaciic 13k3 SUSh 25 COGHH, Nictas, HAVE.
Fire foung Persons, io sk assassmant, and include whhin the Grerall
Ly Disesase, We's
3 hinteers . 4| 2| 8| b the cquipment or ot af e
this, ise he: marter with E:
Highuays and do nat commence week
Ll e s 1 reroved
Scan the ares for porerial ] [ %ok ta be checked and in godl *
rerove fiese 0 2 safe manner pror o coition at e start and o leasi once
commencing otk PFE ol he type
recmenersied i e b v
. SN P ol o | e || e ||
" Jretsmd | vosrs | mresasim |1 [
s Stepping off the | Vounteers | Swukbypessivg | 4 | 5 | g | comagewey e Sl
vemert | & Pubic vekicle i s fochuiy Werk v
ta be ke e for gassing pedestrians.
e 70 S orly be G0ad 318
[ Cromsg e | youmieers | Sckbypessica | B[ iocmsor where woffc sppraning from | 4 | 1 [N Y] >
road vehicle ither divection can be claarty seen g T
Muscie sprains & 2
’ Vehntzar S N & with the bethed Stat e 3 0
Voriniere | Pl e 2 T ol ' b wared T 3 e place vy
8 & Pubic il 2] 2] B ween e work s when retinese. | 2 '] # X
Conclusions
Vehmieers ions o " 2 2
N Hard tool s frasons s tnising | 2 | 2 |8 2] High Red) STOP! Hazrd must be removed or all practcable steps are to be taken to reduce level ofrisk

Page 62



Appendix 2

Method Statement

Diuring the weed remasal process, volurteers will be reguired to remove weeds from gaps
Behyeen the foatway and sdjiacent proparty and or the Toabway and the curbs ar ather adga of
carmiagewday. Whana the foatway compnses sahs or ofer block mabenals joinks bebyeen
irdivicual footvway componers may need to be deared

Mher prediminany investigations, the most efective and sate fom of remowal will be applied.
Physical rernonal af the plant and disposal will be reguired. This should ke the Torm af band-
eld saols; long hande hoes or similar ane the eoommended mplemernt.

Mher remaval it is the volurteer's respormsibility (o ensure all reoovered matedal is disposed of in
suitable, safe way and in accordance with the nelevant legislaton.

Method.

Cnly work in agreed aress must be camied out
Approprishe PPE must be argn alaltines.
Sturdy footwear ideally with a reinforced soul and stes| toe cap should be wom.

Al wiork should be urderaken in pairs with one valuntesr maintaining a safety chservation role
ensuring neither a volunteer g the public are put &t urmecesssany risk by the weeding acivity. fa
member of the public approadhes the work anea, wark must e3ap and the resident alowed o
pass in salety and then conirue ance it is sale b do sa.

Al baals should be chedied for safety at the start of every shift and at least onos, ideally more
times durirg the day. Ay tools mal ina safe condifion should be remased from the work area,
disposed pf and replaced as soon &= possible. Any iools not in use must be skared seay fom
the wiork area So @5 not o present a sk ba volureers and te public.

Ml arisings must be bapged at regukar interdals and the bags moved 9 & safe location avay
from the weark anes =0 s not 5 bacams & frip hazard s volumiesrs or the public. Cane should be
taken when lifing ary bags of waste, follow the guidancs below far the safe lifting of heaey
loads, never [t mare weight than you can comfortably camy:

Manual Handling
Planning - Can | kandle the koad? Can a [ifting aid be used? Do | nesd halp? What ane the
hazands?

Pastre - Kesp your feet apart. Slightly band your back, bips and knees. Feep shoulders level
and facing foreands. Keep the load close ta the bady. Don't aver stratch your back.

Thee Lift — Raise the load whilks! siraitening your lege. Keep the load close to your waist. Keep
your head up. Move smoothly. Do nat byis? or tum.

Conclusion.

T weask will be carried out with consideration of the gegeralouilic and wildife. With the
precautions being taken, there will be minimal risk o the gageraloyblic or E5.C.C volunbesars
during this work.

Training Presentation

Agenda The aim of this training is for you to leave
with an understanding of Health & Safety
and Risks & Mitigation whilst undertaking

Volunteer 5 raining objectives weed maintenance on the Highway.

Most of this training is just common sense

and things you will already consider and do.

Weed 3wy, Training
Maintenance Objectives

A Guide s - aak Assessments

Training

This training is important as it helps us keep
you safe and also allows ESCC insurance to
cover you whilst volunteering.

W Things w think sbot

w e
What you will be doing. Risk Assessment
As outlined in the agreement, the work which will be undertaken is the removal of Weall have Duilt ¥ sk i e
weeds from the footway on the agreed road. These works are only to be the dayl
undertaken in the agreed area on the footway. No grass cutting of verges of hedge " e
ndaraken e orse oo v e s on e
A s X Pl G R SRR 503 Yo T Yot Y 0 15 hE 133, T ¥ Wk 1 You 31 00
. ' kRS 403 have 8 o acTos
- Th riskngn 80 Maee o w1050 posed of by vehidoary Guide to — Risk Assessments T
; M0 ot et on ok ko e i (et of s resn et of
Power tools are not o be used. R ——— cars, width of road and ability to cross), you assessed the risk 1o you if you were to cross.
Volunteers must follow the agreement. if you don't will, East Sussex County Hazard - Risk ~ Likelihood ~ Severity - Control Measures that is needed is

Council will not be able to insure you.

v do risk assessments and o activities

Page 27 of 29
Page 63 aaeero



Appendix 2

Hazards

Control Measures Or Mitigation

Likelihood & Severity

ot we often
eombinstion of lkeihood snd severty.

In ather wrds: “Haw likely is it that | will fall aver my tools? and “If | do fall aver
them, then whst harm will | come to? Will | suffer major injuries or even be killed?”

S50, you need to assess how likely it is that sameone can be harmed by how you
carry out your work

And the severity, Could it cause minor cuts and bruises o serious injury?

Agreement - Appendix B

Things to think about

Things to think about

Working near the highway can be hazardous due to the environment.
There are many things to think about, some of which we will go
through today. However this is not exhaustive.

« Live traffic « Falls and falling « First Aid

* Working closeto the  objects « Visibility
public * Working close to

* Lifting operations water

« Hand Tools « Dangerous

* Holes & Height substances

Live traffic
Ve will e voekng nea v ighay. i mportart you re
rare o o s

‘What could happen f you accidently step ] Ensure you know the width of the pavement.
o the pavement in ive traffic? There should be no need to walk backwards.
Traffic swerving to avoid something could | Don't leave anything which could fall into the
mount the pavement causing an accident. lf road and do not stand in the road.

Whatis the safest place 1o cross the road? [| Agree a crossing point between all volunteers.
What time in the day is it best to carry out ] Perhaps after the work/school run and not in
weed maintenance? the dark

13

Working close to the public
e paemant il B 53 o b s byt g putic
Conbaamion mistoe o3 s

What could happen if you leave your tools. ] EsUre you know the width of the pavement.
around? There should be no need to walk backwards
Could you force a member of the publicinto. )] Don't leave anything which could fall into the
the road due to where you are working? road and do not stand in the road.
Although that weed is pretry, ifyou leave it

there could you cause a trip hazard? AR T e

Hand tools

are oy it 2 et hand ool o poueredtecs
How appropriate are the tools your [ old, wobbly, screws missing hand tools
using? may not be the most appropriate

should you ever leave your tools No. Always ensure volunteers are keeping
unmonitored? tools tidy. Never leave tools alone.

Where should tools be kept whilst Volunteers could agree a monitored area
working? or bucket to keep all tools together.

First Aid (Health)

122 morant 2 inoi what s do i the hinatle
happers.

[ e — 1ts important to know where this s and
TEREE how you would get there.
et e

emergencies

Do your volunteers know where to find a
S

Are you aware of any allergies or medical || For example, a volunteer may have an
needs your volunteers may have? allergic reaction to a plant

many situations.

Safety

Are there enaugh volunteers to
e

Has your group taken the necessary
action to protect themselves?

Gloves, goggles, sun protection.

Before During After

Before

‘The Declaration of Work Form must be
completed at least 2 working days prior
eing carried out. And sent

ous.

This also must be submitizd each Tme
Workis to be undertaken,

During

el On site work form
are onsite ready to start work.
e s sfeer works have
conclugd.

20

During

Page 64

21

‘Check that the area or path is lear of obstruction, in
particular, any cut stems that may have Sprung up when
utiings have been removed

Al waste o rising's mUst be remove from site and disposed

After

site 2t the same time..

‘Once viorks have been completed the L must notify ESCC by
‘emaling the On-Site Work Form

Contracts mansgementgroup@eastsuissex zouuk within 2
working days.

Page 28 of 29



Appendix 2

Appendix E — Volunteering Options

Weed Maintenance Volunteering Options

Any volunteer undertaking maintenance on the Highway needs to be covered by a minimum
of £10 Million Public Liability insurance.
There are two options available:

Insurance Provided
by:

East Sussex County Council

External Group (Standard
Highways Volunteering
Process) : Community Group,
Parish, Town, District,
Borough Council

Documentation
Required

e Signed Agreement by all
volunteers.

e Training completed by all
volunteers.

e Notification document sent
when works are undertaken
and completed by Lead
Volunteer.

e Signed Agreement by
relevant external
group.

e Evidence of insurance
provided.

Benefits of Option

¢ Allows residents to take part
in weed maintenance
without creating own

documentation or insurance.

e Little paperwork or
admin.

e Groups can weed ad
hoc.

e Groups can cover a
large area, not just
one single road.

Restrictions of
Option

¢ Groups cannot undertake
weed maintenance ad hoc.

e Amount of
admin/paperwork.

e Only suitable for individual
roads.

¢ Request to wear full PPE
supplied including goggles
due to requirement from
insurance.

¢ Reliant upon an
external group taking
responsibility.

In all cases if it is found from safety inspections a group is not maintaining the weeds to
keep an accessible footway, contact will be made with the relevant lead volunteer, County
Councillor or external group giving an opportunity to carry out further maintenance.

If an issue persists the area will be added back onto the standard weed maintenance

schedule.

Page 65




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3
Appendix 3 East Sussex

County Council

Post Project Review eastsussex.gov.uk

Project Title Reactive Weed Maintenance 2023
Author Fenella Lillywhite

Date 18/09/2023

Version 0.1

Purpose of This Document

To collate and review the information and feedback from the trial of the reactive weed
maintenance undertaken through the weed maintenance season of 2023.

To understand the successes and issues faced by undertaking reactive weed maintenance
on select roads.

To present the outcome and conclusions made from this trial.

Trial Overview

The reactive trial worked on the same principle as other highways reactive services, such as
potholes, whereby ESCC would only attend to weed control when areas are identified by a
highway steward inspection or via a customer report. Weeds would be removed when
posing a health and safety risk or potential damage to the infrastructure.

The method of control would vary depending on location but would not include use of
Glyphosate.

This was only an option on cul-de-sacs or residential roads with low-speed limits. See
Appendix A for list of reactive roads.

Benefits Noted

¢ No Glyphosate used.
e Appeases residents against the use of glyphosate.

Issues Noted

¢ Weeds generally worse in paved areas, channels and at property/highway
boundaries.

e Large weeds restricting width of pavement causing accessibility issues.
Public perception e.g. Highways are not undertaking works they are responsible for,
cost cutting.

Considerations

e Increase in claims due to trips and hazards on footway.

e Costincrease due to call out for specific tasks.

e Deterioration of assets over time predominantly from roots causing cracking and
lifting of pavement.

e Footway accessibility.

e Increase in complaints from those expecting complete weed removal.

Page 67



Appendix 3

Customer Cases

Year Number of cases to do with weeds in trial
areas.

2023 7

2022 9

2021 4

2020 6

2019 8

There has been no noted increase in customer cases due to the trial.
Resident Feedback

Feedback from residents taking part in the trial has been positive, with many expressing
concerns around the use of glyphosate and finding the greener streets visibly more
appealing.

Some residents cleared weeds themselves in reactive trial areas, ensuring they do not
become too lush.

General Feedback

Although standard case numbers have remained similar to pre-trial levels, the public have
voiced their opposition through other routes, such as directly to Members, on Highways
Facebook posts, the complaint process and submission of Information Requests.

It should be noted that there is a certain mix of public opinion in terms of how weeds should
be maintained, and concerns are more frequently being raised for reasons such as
accessibility, safety and aesthetics.

Contract and Commercial Supervisor Visits

The Contract and Commercial Supervisors inspected the reactive trial locations and noted
that generally those that have received no maintenance over the past 2 years have larger
weeds which could cause potential deterioration and accessibility issues.

The main areas with issues were generally found to be paved areas. In addition, channels,
kerbs and at property/highway boundaries. These areas are noted to be places where soll
and detriment can collect allowing weeds to grip and grow.

See Appendix B for comments and C for images.
Costs

Emmanuel Road and St Georges Road in Hastings did not receive Glyphosate sprays in
2022 and 2023 and provide a good example of two years’ worth of growth, see Appendix D
and therefore the costs to maintain using a strimmer and removal of foliage.

e £1,356.88 for Emmanuel Road and the footpath located between St Georges Road

and St Thomas's Road, Hastings
o £644.79 for St Georges Road, Hastings

Page 68



Appendix 3

The pavement length for both sides of St Georges Road is 734 metres (0.456086 miles).
Therefore, if the 1,914 miles of channels, footpaths, central reservations and islands which
are currently maintained was considered under the same costs it could be in the region of
49 times more expensive than the current weed spraying service at £55,000.

There is potential for these situations to become more frequent if rolled out wider and weeds
are not maintained appropriately, year on year.

Contractor Feedback

The contractor team which visited Emmanual Road and St Georges Road to strim and hand
pick weeds found it was impossible to ensure the whole weed had been removed and
advised that the area would require spraying.

Outcome & Conclusion

Moving to a reactive approach would lead to a deterioration in asset condition if regular
maintenance is not undertaken.

The full impact would take several years to understand, however from the 2-year trial it can
be seen in this limited time how weeds can affect highway infrastructure without
maintenance.

This therefore presents a safety and accessibility hazard as weed growth can damage
paved surfaces, displace kerb stones, and crack walls, all of which make maintenance
difficult and costly.

It is therefore recommended that reactive maintenance is not continued at this stage.

Page 69



Appendix 3

Appendix A — Reactive Roads

The Fairway St Leonards
Plynlimmon Road Hastings
Roebuck Street Hastings
High Wickham Hastings
Edgar Road Hastings

All Saints Street Hastings
Croft Road Hastings

Clive Avenue Hastings
Beaufort Road Hastings
Anglesea Terrace Hastings
West Hill Road St Leonards
Aldborough Road Hastings
St Johns Road Hastings
Maze Hill Terrace Hastings
Stanhope Place Hastings
De Cham Road Hastings
Hillyfield Lewes
Winterbourne Close Lewes

Page 70



Appendix 3

Appendix B — Supervisor Review

Location

When

ESCC
Supervisor
Review
24/08/2023

The Fairway St
Leonards

Reactive 2023

Green Condition
Very little weeds
found

Plynlimmon Road
Hastings

Reactive 2023

Amber Condition
Half the street is clear
other half has a lot of
weeds.

Roebuck Street

Reactive 2023

Amber Condition
Very small weeds

SRETEE found but overall tidy.
High Wickham Reactive 2023 |Amber Condition
Hastings 2 small areas have

been untouched rest
of street has small
weeds

Edgar Road Hastings

Reactive 2023

Amber condition
Few small areas
where weeds have
been found but

overall looks clear.

All Saints Street
Hastings

Reactive 2022
&2023

Red condition
Large area where
weeds are across
footway. Majority of
street looks
untouched.

Croft Road Hastings

Reactive 2023

Amber Condition
Majority of footway
looks clear however
some areas where
weeds remain

Clive Avenue

Reactive 2023

Amber Condition
Large area has been
cleared, however few
small areas where
weeds remain.

Beaufort Road
Hastings

Reactive
2022&2023

Amber Condition
Majority of area is
clear some patches
where weeds are
collecting.

Anglesea Terrace
Hastings

Reactive 2023

Amber condition
Majority of footway is

clear few small areas

Page 71




Appendix 3

Location

When

ESCC
Supervisor
Review
24/08/2023

where weeds have
collected.

West Hill Road St
Leonards

Reactive 2023

N/A

Aldborough Road
Hastings

Reactive 2023

Amber Condition
Large areas clear of
weed however some
small areas where
weeds have been
found.

St Johns Road
Hastings

Reactive 2023

Red condition
Large areas
completely
untouched.

Maze Hill Terrace
Hastings

Reactive 2023

Amber Condition
Maijority of footway is
completely clear
however few small
areas remain.

Stanhope Place Reactive 2023 |N/A

Hastings

De Cham Road Reactive 2023  {Amber Condition
Hastings Majority of footway is

completely clear
however few small
areas remain.

Hillyfield Lewes

Reactive 2022
&2023

Amber Condition
Majority weed free.

Winterbourne Close
Lewes

Reactive 2022 &
2023

Amber Condition
Majority weed free.

Page 72




Appendix 3

Appendix C — Supervisor Images

Thee Fairway

¢/ abed

Page 7 of 22



Appendix 3

Plynilmmon Road

Page 74

Page 8 of 22



Appendix 3

Roebuck Street

G/ abed

Page 9 of 22



9/ abed

Appendix 3

Page 10 of 22



Appendix 3

Edgar Road

Page 11 of 22




Appendix 3

All Saints ‘ :
. Street

.

8/ abed

Page 12 of 22



Appendix 3

Page 79

Page 13 of 22



Appendix 3

Clive Avenue

08 abed

Page 14 of 22



Appendix 3

©
©
@]
o
)
—
o
>
©
(]
o

Page 81

Page 15 of 22



Appendix 3

()
O
©
—
o
=
©
()
)
m..
g_
n.
A\

Page 16 of 22




£g abed

Appendix 3

Page 17 of 22



N
N
—
o
(o0}
—
)
(@]
©
[a

St Johns Road

Appendix 3




Gg abed

Appendix 3

Maze Hill
Terrace

Page 19 of 22




9g abed

Appendix 3

De Cham Road

Page 20 of 22



Appendix 3

=
-
A o 5N
A
7 ol
v S
ot
O
<oy
et
e

Page 21 of 22



Appendix 3

Appendix D - Emmanuel Road Images

Page 22 of 22
Page 88 e s



Appendix 4
Appendix 4 East Sussex
Couny Cuncn%

Post Project Review eastsussexgovuk
Project Title Road Sweeping & Strimming as Weed Maintenance 2023
Author Fenella Lillywhite
Date 18/09/2023
Version 0.1

Purpose of This Document

To collate and review the information and feedback from the trial of road sweeping and
strimming as weed maintenance and understand the successes and issues faced.

To present the outcome and conclusions made from this trial.
Trial Overview

On the 315 July 2023 a trial was undertaken utilising a road sweeper from Wealden District
Council and East Sussex Highway strimming team to understand the effect these
techniques have on weed maintenance.

This trial was undertaken on 4 select roads in Hailsham:
Swan Road

Hawthylands Road

Hawkswood Drive

Lansdowne Road

Benefits Noted

¢ No Glyphosate used.
o Appeases residents against the use of glyphosate.
e A cleaner, neater finish compared to traditional spraying.

Issues Noted

Labour intensive; minimum of 3 persons to strim and drive road sweeper.

Slow; this method takes longer than traditional spraying.

Noisy; this method is very noisy due to the strimmer, blower and sweeper.
Potential car damage, from strimming and flicking stones.

Parked cars can impact this method’s efficiency substantially as works cannot go
ahead.

e Roots generally remain in place meaning quicker regrowth.

e Across Authority collaboration could be hard to programme.

ESCC Asset Engineer Feedback

An ESCC officer supervised the trial advising that two roads (Hawkswood Drive & Swan
Road) were abandoned due to the volume of parked cars, causing manoeuvrability issues
for the sweeper, and concerns from the contractors of loose stones and proximity to the
parked cars.

See Appendix A for images from the Lansdowne Road and Hawthylands Road trials.

Page 89



Appendix 4

The officer then visited again at 2 weeks and 4 weeks after the initial maintenance was
undertaken. See Appendix B for comparison images.

The officer advised that the trial sites have had minimal weed regrowth, especially following
a particularly wet summer. Although highlighted one site with the worst regrowth across the
trial sites. See Appendix C.

Wealden District Council & Biffa Feedback

Wealden District Council and Biffa representatives highlighted that although the technique
worked and the results were acceptable, it took 6hrs to clear 2 roads which is not viable and
very costly. They would not be able to allocate enough resource to undertake this technique.

Costs

This method will have increased costs due to the labour-intensive technique of strimming
requiring additional personnel.

As District and Borough Councils already fully utilise their road sweepers, a potential

additional cost may be either subsidising them or renting the equipment to undertake
highways specific weed maintenance.

Outcome & Conclusion

Although effective, this method has a lot of constraints in terms of accessing all areas where
weed maintenance is needed.

It also has an increased cost due to the number of personnel required and potential re-visits.

This joined up approach will continue to be reviewed, through bi-annual meetings with
District and Boroughs.

Page 90



Appendix 4

Appendix A
Landsdowne Road:

Page 91 Page 3 of 6



Appendix 4

'Hawtk\lylands Road:

\ o

Page 92

Page 4 of 6



Appendix 4

Appendix B

Page 93 Page 5 of 6



Appendix 4

Appendix C

Page94 Page 6 of 6



Appendix 5 Weed Maintenance Techniques Research

Glyphosate

Description Blocks plants enzyme system resulting in total weed control.
East Sussex weed control is undertaken once a year by spraying Glyphosate herbicide along footways and kerb channels where weeds exist
using a diluted 95% water, 5% Glyphosate solution. We only spray where weeds are present.

Research York City Council — 3 times a year.
West Sussex County Council — 2 times a year.
Kent County Council — 2 times a year.
Surrey County Council — once a year. They don’t mention glyphosate but state they use herbicides.
Hertfordshire County Council — 2 times a year.
Nottinghamshire County Council — 2 times a year. Note they use weed killer but do not state name.
Essex County Council — 2 time a year. Note they spray but do not state with what.
Gloucestershire County Council — 2 times a year. Also notes their aim to achieve a high standard of street cleaning and weed control to
improve the appearance of the City.
Hampshire County Council — 1 time a year.
Lancashire County Council — use glyphosate, do not state how often.

;,U Leicestershire County Council — 2 times a year. Note they don’t mention a name but state they spray.

< Lincolnshire County Council — 1 time a year.

© Norfolk County Council — reduced to 1 spray a year from 2023. Within the minutes of Cabinet they noted Reduced use of glyphosate was
critical to this approach, however switching away from its use entirely would mean more labour intensive and mechanical methods which
would increase carbon emissions.
Staffordshire County Council — 1 time a year.
Warwickshire County Council — ‘annual spraying programme’.
Worcestershire County Council — ‘generally twice a year’
Cardiff City Council 2021 trial found from glyphosate, acetic acid and foam stream: Based on the cost, environmental, customer and quality >
criteria (efficacy and sustainability criteria) measured, the most effective and sustainable weed control method currently available for )
pavement weed control in the UK involves the use of glyphosate-based herbicide. o

(@]

Nottinghamshire undertook a trial in 2022 to reduce the number of sprays. From this trial they agreed to continue the single spray option into é
2023.

Concerns Awaiting the EU to publish documents on their risk assessments. For the EU its authorised up until the 15" December 2023. For the UK it is
approved until at least 15" December 2025.

Conclusion Glyphosate is approved in Great Britain until at least 15 December 2025.

Cardiff’s independent scientific report found ‘The responsible glyphosate-based approach to weed control currently used by the council is the
most sustainable method of weed control currently available in the UK.

Research shows that the majority of other County Councils who advise how they maintain weeds use a glyphosate technique.



https://www.york.gov.uk/ReportWeedsAndMoss
https://www.westsussex.gov.uk/roads-and-travel/maintaining-roads-verges-and-pavements/pavement-maintenance/weed-control/
https://www.kent.gov.uk/roads-and-travel/what-we-look-after/soft-landscape-maintenance/weeds#tab-1,4
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/roadworks-and-maintenance/trees-grass-and-hedges/grass/weed-control#:~:text=treated%20when%20necessary.-,When%20weeds%20are%20controlled,weed%20growth%20for%20maximum%20control.
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/services/highways-roads-and-pavements/report-a-problem/grass-cutting-hedges-trees-and-weeds.aspx#:~:text=poor%20TV%20reception.-,Weed%20control,use%20an%20authorised%20weed%20killer.
https://www.nottinghamshire.gov.uk/transport/roads/grass-cutting/weed-spraying
https://www.essexhighways.org/roads-and-pavements/grass-and-vegetation#:~:text=Weed%20spraying&text=We%20aim%20to%20spray%20the,and%20in%20dry%20weather%20conditions.
https://www.gloucester.gov.uk/environment-waste-recycling/waste-recycling-and-street-cleaning/weed-spraying-guidance/
https://www.hants.gov.uk/transport/roadmaintenance/grasscutting
https://www.lancashire.gov.uk/council/strategies-policies-plans/roads-parking-and-travel/highway-asset-management-in-lancashire/strategies/highway-management-plan/
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/roads-and-travel/road-maintenance/grass-cutting#:~:text=Weed%20spraying,structural%20damage%20to%20highway%20assets.
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/maintenance/footpath-maintenance/3
https://www.norfolk.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/roads/road-maintenance/trees-hedges-and-grass-verges#:~:text=We%20treat%20weeds%20with%20an,products%20sold%20at%20DIY%20stores.
https://norfolkcc.cmis.uk.com/norfolkcc/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=NJz6wN1itkYizlA7fpJi4oIvRmfqbtT18LBt%2boh3d3VSCYF%2br7o6cw%3d%3d&rUzwRPf%2bZ3zd4E7Ikn8Lyw%3d%3d=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2fLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3d%3d&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&kCx1AnS9%2fpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2bAJvYtyA%3d%3d=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&FgPlIEJYlotS%2bYGoBi5olA%3d%3d=NHdURQburHA%3d&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1PaO=ctNJFf55vVA%3d
https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/Highways/Weeds-Grass-Trees-Hedges/Weeds.aspx#:~:text=Our%20control%20methods%20for%20injurious,myStaffs%20app%20or%20Report%20It.
https://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/highwayservicestandards
https://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2022-10/highways_maintenance_plan_accessible.pdf
https://cardiff.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s66941/Cabinet%2019%20Jan%202023%20Weed%20control%20App%20A.pdf
https://www.nottinghamshire.gov.uk/newsroom/news/weed-control-trials-return-to-lady-bay-this-spring
https://www.nottinghamshire.gov.uk/transport/roads/grass-cutting/lady-bay-weed-trial
https://www.nottinghamshire.gov.uk/transport/roads/grass-cutting/lady-bay-weed-trial
https://www.efsa.europa.eu/en/topics/topic/glyphosate

Appendix 5 Weed Maintenance Techniques Research

Acetic Acid

Description

Acetic acid works by causing plant desiccation, which means that it causes plants to “dry out”.

Acetic acid found on supermarket shelves (Vinegar) would be a 5% concentration. It is recommended a concentration between 20-30% is
most effective to kill weeds.

Research

U
o)
Q
D
(o]
o

York 2021 trial Acetic Acid applied at 20% strength. Areas treated with acetic acid and Enclean (see nonanoic) showed less weed die back
than glyphosate. Site visits with the external advisor in mid-May found several properties had large weeds growing where the pavement meets
the property. The weeds had survived the treatment and continued to grow. Complaints from the test area were more frequent than non-test
areas and visually the areas were weedier at the time of the second spray in July 2021.

Suffolk County Council use Acetic Acid For the 2023 season an acetic acid weed treatment will be used. These products are natural and
licensed for use as herbicides on hard surfaces.

Cardiff City Council 2021 trial (application 4 times a year) acetic acid delivered intermediate costs and environmental impacts with low
customer satisfaction and quality. Larger product use than glyphosate.

The larger acetic acid product application volume mainly relates to the fact this molecule is not specifically poisonous (herbicidal) to plants,
does not work at low concentrations and does not move around all parts of the plant.

Concerns

Acetic acid is not recommended as this has additional health risks to both the applicant and the public. The recommended strength to kill
weeds can also burn the skin. Consideration also needs to be given to animals such as dogs who may come into direct contact with it.

Should not be sprayed around reactive metals such as aluminium, tin, iron as staining, mottling or other harm to the finishes or surfaces may
occur.

Greater costs and less effective per application.

Conclusion

Acetic acid visibly effects weeds quickly, especially in sunlight however generally only leads to top of the weed being killed and weeds
returning quickly. It should not be sprayed around certain metals so consideration would need to be given to its use around vehicles,
streetlamps, and other structures. In addition, there is an increased health risk, eye and skin irritation.

Pelargonic Acid (Nonanoic acid)

Description A contact acting total herbicide containing pelargonic acid which is derived from sustainable plant origins (Sunflower & Qilseed Rape meal).
Once applied the product causes dehydration in weeds within hours, degrades rapidly and has no residual herbicide activity.

Research Dudley BC trialled in 2022 using Katoun Gold on Grass Edges, Obstacles and Perimeters of parks/openspaces. Found no issues using.

Concerns Pelargonic acid should not be used on hard surfaces as the product needs to enter the soil to degrade.

The hard surface version of Enclean (nonanoic) is only for moss and algae deposits on pavements.
The Health and Safety Executive (HSE) official guidance confirms that this product does not have approval for use on hard surfaces.



https://democracy.york.gov.uk/documents/s155364/Weed%20Treatment%20Options.pdf
https://www.suffolk.gov.uk/asset-library/weed-treatment-updated-7-june-20231.pdf
https://cardiff.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s66941/Cabinet%2019%20Jan%202023%20Weed%20control%20App%20A.pdf
https://cmis.dudley.gov.uk/CMIS5/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=R9EBCfR6HVWOUsPXbsOFKoZ1QSv2Oam7sVE2PM94SltyrcYDMdfYgA%3D%3D&rUzwRPf%2BZ3zd4E7Ikn8Lyw%3D%3D=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2FLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3D%3D&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3D%3D=hFflUdN3100%3D&kCx1AnS9%2FpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3D%3D=hFflUdN3100%3D&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2BAJvYtyA%3D%3D=ctNJFf55vVA%3D&FgPlIEJYlotS%2BYGoBi5olA%3D%3D=NHdURQburHA%3D&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3D&WGewmoAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3D&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1PaO=ctNJFf55vVA%3D

Appendix 5 Weed Maintenance Techniques Research

States it has an adverse effect on bees within the documentation.

Conclusion

This product is not suitable for use on the highway.

Foam Stream

Description

Made from natural plant oils and sugars. Foamstream is combined with hot water and applied to weeds using a lance. The foam insulates the
hot water, ensuring the heat is not lost to the atmosphere. This ensures the heat covers the plant for long enough for it to kill or severely
damage the plant.

Research

16 abed

Dudley 2022 trial found using the machine was not practical on main roads or in areas with high numbers of parked cars. Considerable time is
lost needing to refill the machine with water. Two operatives are required to drive and operate the machine, with the treatment taking longer to
apply than a conventional spray. The machine is diesel/petrol powered and requires vehicle mounting.

Pg 4 ‘North Yorkshire County Council have tested hot foam in 2021. They found that foamsteam requires 2 to 3 treatments. Broadly they have
found the treatments to be of success but they do not have any current plans to roll the provision out any further across the County. The main
reason for this is that it is essentially a machine more suited to urban areas and NYCC do not believe the system to be suitable for more rural
and disparate areas. Additionally, the set up costs for the trial have been high and with the move to Local Government Reorganisation they
are not progressing any further.

Cardiff City Council 2021 trial (application 3 times a year) hot foam generated high costs and environmental impacts, but high customer
satisfaction and quality. Large water use and large fuel use. Based only on labour costs, application of hot foam alone is therefore 31 times
more expensive than glyphosate; however, it is notable that this estimated cost does not account for the greater equipment purchase costs
associated with hot foam treatment compared with the application of both acetic acid and glyphosate Hot foam is therefore a carbon intensive
control method.

Hot foam required 629.64 litres of water per kilometre - 62 times more water than glyphosate, which required 13 litres per kilometre. Acetic
acid required 8.44 litres per kilometre.

Applying glyphosate used less fuel - just 0.18 litres of diesel per km treated, compared to 0.19 litres for acetic acid, and 12.33 litres of diesel,
plus 2.13 litres of petrol for hot foam - that's 63 times more diesel and 100% more petrol than required for glyphosate.

West Sussex County Council undertook a Foam Stream Trial in 2022 and concluded that the time, chemical, water and fuel massively
exceed the resources of using glyphosate. Highlighting concerns around carbon footprint and the speed that the perennial weeds return.

Concerns

Much higher cost, have other environmental impacts, and are more difficult to use in a congested urban environment or rural area due to
distance.

Conclusion

Consideration should be given to the increased water and fuel usage and whether that outweighs the other environmental benefits. Not
efficient for use on the large highway network.

Flame Guns

Description

| Use of flames to destroy vegetative matter.



https://cmis.dudley.gov.uk/CMIS5/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=R9EBCfR6HVWOUsPXbsOFKoZ1QSv2Oam7sVE2PM94SltyrcYDMdfYgA%3D%3D&rUzwRPf%2BZ3zd4E7Ikn8Lyw%3D%3D=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2FLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3D%3D&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3D%3D=hFflUdN3100%3D&kCx1AnS9%2FpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3D%3D=hFflUdN3100%3D&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2BAJvYtyA%3D%3D=ctNJFf55vVA%3D&FgPlIEJYlotS%2BYGoBi5olA%3D%3D=NHdURQburHA%3D&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3D&WGewmoAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3D&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1PaO=ctNJFf55vVA%3D
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/documents/s155364/Weed%20Treatment%20Options.pdf
https://cardiff.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s66941/Cabinet%2019%20Jan%202023%20Weed%20control%20App%20A.pdf

Appendix 5 Weed Maintenance Techniques Research

Research

Nottinghamshire considered various thermal weed control methods in their 2022 trial and none proved suitable.

Concerns

Use of flames around parked vehicles and highway infrastructure.

Conclusion

Due to the nature of the highway flame guns are not suitable to be used around areas with parked vehicles.

Volunteer

Description

Using volunteers from the relevant street to undertake weed maintenance on the behalf of the County Council.

Research

86 abed

Kent County Council advises public on their website: Pulling or hoeing weeds would save us using weedkiller. We recommend wearing gloves
when touching any plant you are unfamiliar with, in case you have a reaction to the sap or prickles. Sweeping up after can help prevent further
weeds growing.

The weedkiller we use may remain in the plant system for 6 weeks or more, so you should not put treated weeds into your compost or into
your green waste collection. We are unable to collect removed weeds or dirt from you, so you must carefully and safely dispose them yourself.

Always make sure you can carry out any maintenance safely, wear personal protective equipment (PPE) and be aware of pedestrians, cyclists
and drivers.

Wirral Council considered volunteers but found: One of the issues that arose was that the manual hand scraping method used by community
groups generated a significant potential health and safety risk, with volunteers at the alternative method trials complaining of back pain after
relatively short periods of weeding. There were also health and safety concerns identified relating to the risks associated with volunteers
working near or on the highway. It is evident therefore that the use of volunteers to carry out weed control would not be viable to keep the
100,000km of roads and pavements free of weeds. However, involving community groups and volunteers in weed control in a supporting way
is welcomed and should be promoted (with appropriate risk assessment and support from officers).

Brighton and Hove asked the public to tackle unwanted plants themselves. This was met with some backlash from residents and news
outlets:

The following article from the Daily Mail highlights ‘fury’ of residents. Reading some of the 1100 comments from the article themes range from
charging the council for their time, loosing tourism, taking pride in your local area, support and opposition for the continued use of glyphosate.
This following article from the Argus highlights the scheme as being ‘outrageous’, noting safety and the Councils statutory duty. Reading some
of the 33 comments the themes range from who is responsible if someone is injured, that it is a service being paid for, support for glyphosate.

Lancaster City Council has taken the decision to stop using Glyphosate and instead are asking residents to help tackle the issue by working
with others in their community to pull weeds by hand or using another method, such as boiling water. However, it should be noted that they
passed back responsibility of highways maintenance to Lancaster County Council who remains using Glyphosate.

Concerns

Health and Safety issues and public perception.

Conclusion

Consideration needs to be given to the management needed of a scheme like this and who is responsible for safety.



https://www.nottinghamshire.gov.uk/transport/roads/grass-cutting/lady-bay-weed-trial
https://www.kent.gov.uk/roads-and-travel/what-we-look-after/soft-landscape-maintenance/weeds#:~:text=Pulling%20or%20hoeing%20weeds%20would,help%20prevent%20further%20weeds%20growing.
https://democracy.wirral.gov.uk/documents/s50080637/Weed%20Control%20Options%20Appraisal%20Report%20August%202021.pdf
https://www.dailymail.co.uk/news/article-11886307/Fury-Green-council-banned-weed-killer-asks-residents-tackle-unwanted-plants-themselves.html
https://www.theargus.co.uk/news/23405314.brighton-council-criticised-asking-volunteers-pick-weeds/
https://www.lancaster.gov.uk/news/2020/jun/weed-control-and-grounds-maintenance-in-the-lancaster-district

Appendix 5 Weed Maintenance Techniques Research

Weed Rippers

Description

Mechanical pedestrian machines for physically removing weeds from hard surfaces.

Research

Dudley 2022 trial used weed rippers which were considered effective where weeds are already established, but effective use requires two
operatives.

Brighton and Hove are starting to utilise weed rippers and machines. Too early to provide feedback.

Concerns

Two staff members need to be able to alternate the device due to vibration, this can range from every 20 minutes to every hour depending on
the device used. Brushes need to be replaced at a cost of around £89 - £150 depending on device. Cost of device also need to be
considered.

The device can cut weeds but doesn’t remove roots and is a slow, physically demanding process.

Conclusion

Additional staff needed for slower progress and technique which does not tackle the root of the plant.

Hpe and Hand/Manual

Bscription Manual techniques to remove weeds, using simple gardening tools.

I%gsearch Dudley 2022 trial found that whilst effective, this operation is more labour intense.
The London Borough of Hounslow has switched from using Glyphosate to manual based approaches. The budget spent on glyphosate has
been reused to employ more operatives to manually remove weeds as part of the two-weekly ward-based cleansing schedule. A dedicated
team with strimmer’s to support the ward-based teams. They advise that operatives take a little longer to effectively clear weeds on
Hounslow’s public highways. And manually removing weeds means they do grow back faster, so ongoing control is likely to be necessary.
They target specific roads they received reports from the previous years for this year’s programme. And then deal with any safety issues.

Concerns The number of staff needed to undertake a maintenance technique like this across a whole County.

Conclusion Would be best utilised in addition to another technique.

No Planned Maintenance / Reactive

Description

Weeds reported by the public maintained only.

Research

Norfolk County Councils Cabinet report noted that they would be re-evaluating where greater weediness can be tolerated on an annual basis
is better practice than ‘business as usual.

Nottinghamshire undertook a trial in 2022 to spray on demand in certain areas. From this trial they agreed to continue the spray on demand
option into 2023 for certain areas.

Brighton and Hove have received concern from leaving areas with weeds. The following article from the Daily Mail highlights Elderly and
disabled concerned about trips.

Concerns

Accessibility for those with protected characteristics. Effect on the infrastructure if weeds are left. Negative public perception.



https://cmis.dudley.gov.uk/CMIS5/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=R9EBCfR6HVWOUsPXbsOFKoZ1QSv2Oam7sVE2PM94SltyrcYDMdfYgA%3D%3D&rUzwRPf%2BZ3zd4E7Ikn8Lyw%3D%3D=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2FLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3D%3D&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3D%3D=hFflUdN3100%3D&kCx1AnS9%2FpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3D%3D=hFflUdN3100%3D&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2BAJvYtyA%3D%3D=ctNJFf55vVA%3D&FgPlIEJYlotS%2BYGoBi5olA%3D%3D=NHdURQburHA%3D&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3D&WGewmoAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3D&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1PaO=ctNJFf55vVA%3D
https://cmis.dudley.gov.uk/CMIS5/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=R9EBCfR6HVWOUsPXbsOFKoZ1QSv2Oam7sVE2PM94SltyrcYDMdfYgA%3D%3D&rUzwRPf%2BZ3zd4E7Ikn8Lyw%3D%3D=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2FLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3D%3D&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3D%3D=hFflUdN3100%3D&kCx1AnS9%2FpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3D%3D=hFflUdN3100%3D&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2BAJvYtyA%3D%3D=ctNJFf55vVA%3D&FgPlIEJYlotS%2BYGoBi5olA%3D%3D=NHdURQburHA%3D&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3D&WGewmoAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3D&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1PaO=ctNJFf55vVA%3D
https://www.hounslow.gov.uk/info/20006/environment/2229/greener_borough/3
https://norfolkcc.cmis.uk.com/norfolkcc/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=NJz6wN1itkYizlA7fpJi4oIvRmfqbtT18LBt%2boh3d3VSCYF%2br7o6cw%3d%3d&rUzwRPf%2bZ3zd4E7Ikn8Lyw%3d%3d=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2fLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3d%3d&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&kCx1AnS9%2fpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2bAJvYtyA%3d%3d=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&FgPlIEJYlotS%2bYGoBi5olA%3d%3d=NHdURQburHA%3d&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1PaO=ctNJFf55vVA%3d
https://www.nottinghamshire.gov.uk/newsroom/news/weed-control-trials-return-to-lady-bay-this-spring
https://www.nottinghamshire.gov.uk/transport/roads/grass-cutting/lady-bay-weed-trial
https://www.nottinghamshire.gov.uk/transport/roads/grass-cutting/lady-bay-weed-trial
https://www.dailymail.co.uk/news/article-11886307/Fury-Green-council-banned-weed-killer-asks-residents-tackle-unwanted-plants-themselves.html

Appendix 5 Weed Maintenance Techniques Research

| Conclusion

| Tolerance to weeds in streets could be tested further.

Road Sweeping

Description Mechanical sweeper generally utilised for keeping public roads clean. Generally, the responsibility of District and Borough Councils.

Research Gloucestershire spraying is supported by sweeping in the more central areas advising that: Roads which are swept frequently with a high
build quality should only require minimal herbicide treatment.

Concerns Reliance upon District and Brough Council service.

Conclusion There is a correlation between road sweeping and less weeds due to weeds not having the detritus to hold onto.

Integrated Pest Management (IPM) / Integrated Weed Management

Description Achieving weed maintenance by utilising a range of strategies.
The aim of IWM is to diversify weed management strategies to reduce the reliance on herbicides and promote the use of site-specific weed
management and target applications to reduce herbicide impacts, where possible.

Research Cardiff Report (pg 6) provides information on IPM to use a range of weed controls:

® e Cultural (preventative)

5 e Physical (mechanical)

o e Biological (biocontrol or bioherbicides)
e Chemical (herbicides, also known as plant protection products; PPPs)
e Integrated Pest Management (IPM)

Concerns Decision on where to use which devices, scheduling issues and increased costs due to using a range of options. Different areas receiving a
different service.

Conclusion

A standard base service should be provided to all residents across East Sussex to avoid the feeling of discrimination against certain areas.



https://www.gloucester.gov.uk/environment-waste-recycling/waste-recycling-and-street-cleaning/weed-spraying-guidance/
https://cardiff.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s66941/Cabinet%2019%20Jan%202023%20Weed%20control%20App%20A.pdf

Appendix 6

Appendix 6

Weed Maintenance Volunteering Options

Any volunteer undertaking maintenance on the Highway needs to be covered by a minimum of £10
Million Public Liability insurance.

There are two options available:

Insurance Provided
by:

East Sussex County Council

External Group (Standard
Highways Volunteering Process) :
Community Group, Parish, Town,
District, Borough Council

weed maintenance without
creating own documentation
or insurance.

Documentation e Signed Agreement by all e Signed Agreement by
Required volunteers. relevant external group.
e Training completed by all e Evidence of insurance
volunteers. provided.
¢ Notification document sent
when works are undertaken
and completed by Lead
Volunteer.
Benefits of Option e Allows residents to take part in e Little paperwork or

admin.

e Groups can weed ad
hoc.

e Groups can cover a large
area, not just one single
road.

Restrictions of
Option

e Groups cannot undertake
weed maintenance ad hoc.

e Amount of admin/paperwork.

e Only suitable for individual
roads.

e Request to wear full PPE
supplied including goggles due
to requirement from
insurance.

e Reliant upon an external
group taking
responsibility.

In all cases if it is found from safety inspections a group is not maintaining the weeds to keep an
accessible footway, contact will be made with the relevant lead volunteer, County Councillor or
external group giving an opportunity to carry out further maintenance.

If an issue persists the area will be added back onto the standard weed maintenance schedule.

Page 101




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

Report to: Lead Member for Transport and Environment
Date of meeting: 11 December 2023
By: Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

Title: Rural Verges as Wildlife Corridors - Trial of Early Season Reduction in
Rural Grass Cutting

Purpose: To agree the way forward following the rural grass cutting trial

RECOMMENDATIONS: The Lead Member is recommended to:

(1) Agree to offer areduced number of cuts for grass verges in rural areas;

(2) Agree, subject to recommendation 1 above, the proposed updates to the Highway
Verges and Vegetation Policy; and

(3) Agree that single track lanes, with the exception of wildlife verges, will continue to
be excluded in any reduced rural grass cutting because of safety concerns along
narrow roads.

1. Background Information

1.1 East Sussex is a largely rural county with a large rural network of verged roads which
provide important connections for local communities.

1.2 East Sussex County Council (ESCC) has received an increased level of Member and
resident contact regarding rural verge cutting since May 2020. Most notably an increase in requests
to stop cutting rural verges or change the schedule in line with wild plant cycles. This has been
partly driven by the charity Plantlife’s Road Verge Campaign, and a number of articles in the press
and social media highlighting the benefit of road verges as wildlife corridors.

1.3 ESCC has also set targets for carbon reduction of which increased biodiversity plays an
important part.
2. Supporting Information

Current Situation

2.1 The standard rural grass cut is a 1.0 metre wide swathe undertaken along the verge length
with wider areas cut around junctions and bends to ensure good visibility is maintained. This is
carried out twice a year. In addition, a full cut back to the highway is carried out on approximately
a quarter of rural verges each year to prevent brambles, invasive weeds and trees from taking-over
verges. See Appendix 1 for the current Highway Verges and Vegetation Policy (the Policy).

The Trial

2.2 A trial reduction in verge cutting has been undertaken over the last three years, since 2021.
Initially Borough, Parish and Town Councils who had previously expressed an interest were invited
to take part in the trial. In 2023 all Borough, Parish and Town Councils were given the option to
receive reduced cuts, with 27 electing to take part. See Appendix 2 for Borough, Parish and Towns
involved, and Appendix 3 for the Equality Impact Assessment carried out for the trial.

2.3 The trial reduced the frequency of grass cutting services along rural verges in the selected
areas to one visibility cut undertaken around May or June, and a single one metre swathe with
visibility cuts in the Autumn.

24 This change meant that ESCC would not cut rural verges in the trial areas (except for
visibility) during the flowering season and when it is the most beneficial time for pollinators so the
verges can act as wildlife corridors. Flowering plants would then be able to complete their lifecycles
and set seed, providing further biodiversity benefits.

Page 103



2.5 Safety issues remained the priority, with any visibility or access issues being picked up and
rectified through the usual reporting and reactive process.

Customer Feedback

2.6 Feedback was collected throughout the trial, which received a largely positive result:

In 2021, 88 responses were received. 56 (63%) were in favour of the reduction.

In 2022, 28 responses were received, 22 (78%) were in favour of the reduction.

In 2023 so far, 45 responses were received, 35 (77%) were in favour of the reduction.

For all years the main reasons people opposed the trial were safety, aesthetics (‘looks
messy’) and the perception that it was a money saving exercise by the Council.

2.7 Feedback from Councillors has been mixed. Some are in favour of the reduction, whilst
other have concerns about the combination of highway deterioration and unkempt grass, potentially
coupled with changes in weed maintenance. Councillors have noted similar negative feedback from
residents who had contacted them.

2.8 Feedback from Borough, Parish and Town Councils involved in the trial has been positive,
highlighting the benefits to biodiversity and an interest in rolling the service out further.

Operational Feedback

2.9 The grass cutting season in 2021 saw a significant amount of rainfall compared to 2022
which was a very dry season and therefore it is difficult to draw comparisons between the two
years. The 2023 season was variable, creating perfect conditions for grass growth.

2.10 The contractor undertaking the verge maintenance noted that the verges that only received
one cut don’t look as tidy due to the length of grass and the amount of laying grass. They advised
that areas with only one cut can take longer to cut and could potentially damage equipment as the
operatives are unable to see debris in the verges. Potential impact is that those verges that only
receive one cut a year, may take longer to cut in subsequent years.

Defects

2.11 There was an increase in reported visibility problems in the trial areas for all years. Grass
visibility defect details can be found at Appendix 4.

Future management

2.12 The trial has been largely successful and well received by those taking part.

2.13 It is therefore recommended that the Council formally adopts this as Poalicy, so that it is
available to all Parish and Town Councils to opt in to. For those areas that do not opt into this
approach, the current grass cutting regime will continue. See Appendix 5 for proposed updates to
the current Policy, indicated in red.

2.14 A proposed update to the urban grass cutting service has also been included in the draft
Policy in line with current practice and service agreed by the Lead Member for Transport and
Environment in May 2018.

2.15 If agreed, all Borough, Parish and Town Councils will be contacted in January 2024 and
given the opportunity to opt into a reduced cut and enhanced biodiversity service. This will then be
the default service for that area, unless the Borough, Parish or Town Council advises ESCC
otherwise.

2.16  Safety concerns would remain a priority, with any reported visibility or access issues being
picked up and rectified through the usual process.
3. Conclusion and Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 Overall, the trial has been well received, with feedback each year being taken onboard, and
appropriate changes made, such as the exclusion of single-track lanes.

3.2 The trial has successfully included 618 miles (out of a total of 1,790 miles) of rural verges
managed for biodiversity reasons.

Page 104



3.3 The Lead Member is recommended to agree to offer reduced rural cuts to all Borough,
Parish and Town Councils for rural grass cutting as standard practice.

3.4 The Lead Member is recommended, subject to the above recommendation, to agree the
proposed updates to the Highway Verges and Vegetation Policy in accordance with the above
option.

3.5 The Lead Member is recommended to agree that single track lanes will not be included in
the reduced rural grass cutting due to concerns raised about visibility and safety on these roads,
with the exception of wildlife verge applications which will be reviewed individually.

RUPERT CLUBB
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

Contact Officer: Dale Poore
Tel. No. 01273 335506
Email: dale.poore@eastsussex.gov.uk

LOCAL MEMBERS
All

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
None

Page 105


mailto:dale.poore@eastsussex.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

EAST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL
LEAD MEMBER - TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT
POLICY SUMMARY

PS 7/2 Highway Verges and Vegetation

Purpose of Policy

East Sussex County Council (ESCC) recognises the vital role played by the local highway network.

The purpose of this policy is to set out the standards for the maintenance of highway verges and
vegetation to achieve a balance between statutory obligations, safety, serviceability and
sustainability.

Policy Statement

1) Verge cutting

a. The standards adopted for verge cutting throughout the County will be dependent upon
the funds available in the maintenance budget.

b. The County Council (or its duly appointed agents) will carry out the following cuts to
verges. In this context, urban areas are, unless determined otherwise, defined as built up
locations with a 20, 30 or 40mph speed limit. All other areas are rural.

i. In Rural Areas: two cuts per annum for visibility at junctions and for safety on the
inside of bends where sight lines between road users may be obscured by
vegetation.

ii. InUrban Areas: two cuts per annum.

c. Additional cuts may be carried out at junctions and sight lines where the County Council
deem it to be necessary for safety reasons where visibility is reduced.

d. Further cuts may be carried out where additional funding is available.

e. Areas of verge listed and marked as being of wildlife interest, will be specially maintained
according to the needs of the individual verge.

f. A full cut back of the county verges to the highway boundary will be completed every four
years on a rotating schedule.

2) Weed Control - street furniture, paved areas and kerbs/channels
Where herbicides are used for the treatment of weeds, weeds will only be treated using
herbicides from the Health and Safety Executive’s Pesticides Register of UK Authorised
Products suitable for use on highways

3) Hedge Trimming

a. Hedges which are adjacent to the road/footway and are the responsibility of the County
Council will be trimmed once a year.

b. Where the County Council determine that there are special requirements in visibility
areas, cutting will be undertaken when required.

Page 107




4) Trees

a. Highway trees should only receive maintenance at County Council expense for reasons of
health and safety, access and visibility on the highway or where they are causing damage
to property. Tree maintenance work shall be undertaken in line with the recommendations
of BS 3998: 2010 (‘Tree work’).

b. Third parties may be given the opportunity to become involved in the provision of new trees
on the Highway where appropriate.

5) Siding

a. Inrural areas only the minimum amount of siding (trimming of verges along the pavement)
should be carried out on carriageways, e.g. when needed before surface dressing and the
renewal of edge markings, since in most cases the traffic keeps the carriageway clear.

b. On footways, only the minimum amount of siding should be carried out to preserve an

adequate width of footway for all types of pedestrian traffic where this is considered
necessary on an ad-hoc basis.

6) Third parties

a.

The Highway Authority may authorise third parties to carry out the above services or
additional works to highway verges and vegetation at their own expense. E.g.

- farmers in the county wishing to use suitable verges for haymaking;

- individuals and organisations wishing to manage verges for wildlife or amenity purposes.

Any areas planted by third parties acting under licence will be maintained by the licensee
unless otherwise agreed with the County Council (refer to PS 8/6 Roadside Sponsorship)

Supporting Information

Well-managed Highway Infrastructure, 2016, UK Roads Liaison Group

Version control Date of last review:

H&T Committee - 22 March 1974 22.03.1974

H&T Committee - 22 October 1980 - Agenda Item 5. 23 28.10.1975
H&T Committee - 16 December 1980 - Agenda Item 6. 2 16.12.1980
H&T Committee - 11 December 1984 - Agenda Item 7 11.12.1984
H&T Committee - 31 May 1989 - Agenda Item 18. 31.05.1989

H&T Committee - 25 March 1975 - Agenda Item 8. 25.03.1975

H&T Committee - 16 September 1992 - Agenda Item 9. 16.09.1992
H&T Committee - 19 October 1994 - Agenda Item 19. 19.10.1994
T&E Committee - 10 March 1998 - Agenda Item 6. 10.03.1998

Lead Member for Transport and Environment — 21.05.2018

Page 108




Appendix 2
Appendix 2 — Parish and Town Councils Involved in Trial

Ke

Involved in 1 Season

<

Involved in 2 Seasons

2021 2022 2023
1. Alfriston 1. Ashburnham with 1. Ashburnham with Penhurst
Penhurst
4. Brightling 4. Bodiam
6. Crowborough _
6. Chiddingly
7. Hastings 7. Chiddingly
7. Crowhurst
8. Heathfield and 8. Crowhurst
Waldron 8. Ditchling
9. Ditchling
_ 9. Framfield
10. East Dean and Friston
10. Mountfield 10. Frant
11. East Hoathly with Halland
12. Firle
12. Westmeston 12. Heathfield and
- 13. Framfield
_ 14. Frant
15. Warbleton 16. Heathfield and Waldron
17. Kingston

[any
o

18. Laughton

20. Saleshurst & Robertsbridge
21. Sedlescombe

22. Uckfield

24. Warbleton

Page 109



26. Withyham

27. Wivelsfield

Page 110




TTT abed

East Sussex
County Council

53
2

Equality Impact Analysis Template

Equality Impact Analysis (EqlA) (or Equality Impact Assessment) aims to make services and public policy better for all
service-users and staff and supports value for money by getting council services right first time.

We use EqglAs to enable us to consider all relevant information from an Equality requirements perspective when procuring or
restructuring a service or introducing a new policy or strategy. This analysis of impacts is then reflected in the relevant action plan
to get the best outcomes for the Council, its staff and service-users?.

EqlAs are used to analyse and assess how the Council’s work might impact differently on different groups of people?. EqlAs help
the Council to make good decisions for its service-users, staff and residents and provide evidence that those decision conform with
the Council’s obligations under the Equality Act 20103.

This template sets out the steps you need to take to complete an EglA for your project. Guidance for sections is in the end-notes. If
you have any questions about your EglA and/or how to complete this form, please use the contact details at the end of this form.

Title of

Project/Service/Policy Reduction of Rural Grass Cutting Trial

Team/Department® Highways

Directorate Communities Economies and Transport

East Sussex County Council (ESCC) received an increased level of Member and resident
contact regarding the rural roads verge cutting service over the past two years. The
correspondence is largely made up of requests to stop cutting rural verges or change the
schedule and frequency. This has been driven by the charity Plantlife’s Road Verge Campaign,
and a number of articles in the press and social media highlighting the benefit of road verges as
wildlife corridors. Other local and national initiatives can also be seen to follow this approach, for
example, the High Weald AONB work with Natural England on Nature Recovery Networks.

Provide a comprehensive
description of your Project
(Service/Policy, etc.)
including its Purpose and
Scope®

¢ Xipuaddy

2021 1



21T abed

East Sussex
County Council

Due to the heightened interest by residents in the ecological value of roadside verges anm

contribution to the landscape and character of the County, ESCC trialled the reduction of the
rural grass cutting service in 2021 and 2022 in select Parish and Towns.

Rural verges usually have two cuts per season of visibility and a 1-metre-wide swathe along the
length of the verge.

The trial reduced the grass cutting service of rural verges in those areas to:
. One visibility cut undertaken around May/June
. One 1 metre Swathe with Visibility cuts in the Autumn

This change meant that ESCC would not cut rural verges (except for visibility) at a time when
flowering is often at its peak, and it is the most beneficial time for pollinators. Flowering plants
would then be able to complete their lifecycles and set seed, providing further biodiversity
benefits. Safety issues remained the priority, with any visibility or access issues being picked up
and rectified through the usual process.

For 2023 the option was given to all Parish and Town Councils, 27 of which opted to receive
reduced cuts.

The majority of feedback received has been positive in terms of the reduction. Those that have
said they do not support the reduction has highlighted issues such as visibility and a couple
sighted a reduction in width of paths where the grass falls over. It should be noted that we do not
maintain verges as footways, however if verges are affecting accessibility of a footpath, this
would be dealt with as per any other safety issue.

2021 2



€17 abed

East Sussex
County Council

5
2

Initial assessment of whether your project requires an EqlA

When answering these questions, please keep in mind all legally protected equality characteristics (sex/gender, gender
reassignment, religion or belief, age, disability, ethnicity/race, sexual orientation, marriage/civil partnership, pregnancy and
maternity) of the people actually or potentially receiving and benefiting from the services or the policy.

In particular consider whether there are any potential equality related barriers that people may experience when getting to know
about, accessing or receiving the service or the policy to be introduced or changed.

Discuss the results of your Equality assessment with the Equality Lead for your department and agree whether improvements or
changes need to be made to any aspect of your Project.

Don’t

Question Yes No KNnow

1 | Isthere evidence of different needs, experiences, issues or priorities on the basis of the equality | X
characteristics (listed below) in relation to the service or policy/strategy area?
2 | Are there any proposed changes in the service/policy that may affect how services are run and/or | X
used or the ways the policy will impact different groups?
3 | Are there any proposed changes in the service/policy that may affect service-users/staff/residents | X

directly?

4 | Is there potential for, or evidence that, the service/policy may adversely affect inclusiveness or X
harm good relations between different groups of people?

5 | Is there any potential for, or evidence that any part of the service/aspects of the policy could have X
a direct or indirect discriminatory effect on service-users /staff/residents?

6 | Is there any stakeholder (Council staff, residents, trade unions, service-users, VCSE X

organisations) concerned about actual, potential, or perceived discrimination/unequal treatment in
the service or the Policy on the basis of the equality characteristics set out above that may lead to
taking legal action against the Council?

7 | Is there any evidence or indication of higher or lower uptake of the service by, or the impact of the X
policy on, people who share the equality characteristics set out above?

If you have answered “YES” or “DON’T KNOW?” to any of the questions above, then the completion of an EqlA is necessary.

2021 3



East Sussex
County Council

53
2

The need for an EqlA will depend on:
e How many questions you have answered “yes”, or “don’t know” to;

e The likelihood of the Council facing legal action in relation to the effects of service or the policy may have on groups sharing
protected characteristics; and

e The likelihood of adverse publicity and reputational damage for the Council.

Low risk Medium risk High risk
The project has a medium risk due to
the area the trial covers, its
significance and the potential
numbers of people affected.

There is a risk that some of those
sharing specific protected
characteristics may not be able to
access the highway network as safely
as those without those protected
characteristics.

yTT abed

Some people sharing specific
protected characteristics may be
adversely affected in terms of safety
or ability to access the highway before
we are able to rectify the issue that
has arisen. (e.g. only able to cut an
overgrown verge once it has been
reported)

2021 4



1. Update on previous EqlAs and outcomes of previous actions (if applicable)’

20 ¢

East Sussex
County Council

5

What actions did you plan last time?
(List them from the previous EqlA)

What improved as a result?
What outcomes have these actions
achieved?

What further actions do you need to
take? (add these to the Action Plan
below)

Visibility, narrow footpaths, inaccessible
verges. More information on effects of
reduction in rural grass cutting from
feedback form and customer
correspondence.

GTT abed

Negative feedback received mainly
commented on untidiness and safety in
terms of visibility.

In 2022 there were no noted increase in
reports in trial areas. They remained
inline, and even less, than areas outside
the trial.

Decision was made to not include single
track lanes in the trial due to issues being
raised with the width of the road due to
the grass.

Review EqIA following the verge cutting
season to see if changes have had a
significant impact on those with protected
characteristics.

To minimise impact on customers with
these protected characteristics, we will
ensure an efficient process (described
above) whereby we can respond to
issues (especially relating to any visibility
or access) in appropriate timescales.

2021



East Sussex
County Council

53
:

2. Review of information, equality analysis and potential actions

Consider the actual or potential impact of your project (service, or policy) against each of the equality characteristics.

Protected
characteristics
groups under

What do you know?®?
Summary of data
about your service-

What do people tell
you9?
Summary of service-

What does this mean0?
Impacts identified from data and

What can you do?'?

All potential actions to:

. advance equality of
opportunity,

0-44.

reduction in visibility and/or be
harder for traffic to see.

They may also find it harder to
walk on verges through long
vegetation to take refuge from
traffic in areas where there are
no footways.

If vegetation is overgrown to the
extent where pedestrians have
to walk in the carriageway, this

the Equality users and/or staff user and/or staff feedback (actual and potential) . eliminate discrimination,
Act 2010 feedback and
. foster good relations
The highways service | e Narrowed footway by The reduced frequency of rural To minimise impact on
covers the entire overgrown vegetation verge cutting may mean that customers with this
county of East creating trip hazards there will be times of the year protected characteristic, we
Ay Sussex. East Sussex | for elderly & children when vegetation in the verges is | will ensure an efficient
< has a higher walking to school. quite high. process whereby we can
= population (6.3% « Visibility issues at Long grass and other vegetation | respond to issues in
o higher) of people aged | junctions, noting in the verges may mean Children | appropriate timescales.
over 65 than the potential near misses. on foot and older people who
average for England | ¢ Access to property may be more likely to be using | Throughout the trial safety
and Wales. But below | restricted due to wheelchairs/mobility scooters issues will remain our
Age’? average in age groups | overgrown verges. etc. may suffer a greater priority, with any visibility or

access issues being picked
up through the standard
process and rectified.

East Sussex Highways can
be contacted 24 hrs a day, 7
days a week via phone,
email and post and is readily
accessible for people with all
protected characteristics.

2021




/1T abed

East Sussex
County Council

Protected
characteristics
groups under

What do you know?8?
Summary of data
about your service-

What do people tell
you®?
Summary of service-

What does this mean0?
Impacts identified from data and

What can yom

All potential actions to:
. advance equality of
opportunity,

the Equality users and/or staff user and/or staff feedback (actual and potential) . eliminate discrimination,
Act 2010 feedback and
. foster good relations
will have a negative impact on
their safety (real and perceived) | It may be useful to note that
and could reduce their verges are not footpaths and
ability/confidence to access the | should not be expected to be
highway network and used as such.
consequently the surrounding
area. We will monitor and take into
e Older people with reduced consideration any feedback
mobility or in received specific to the trial
wheelchairs/mobility scooters and use it to support future
etc. may be more affected by the | reviews and EqlA’s.
narrowing of footpaths and roads
due to overgrown grass and
vegetation.
East Sussex has a e Narrowed footway
higher population of by overgrown
people with a disability vegetation creating
than the average for trip hazards for
Disability’? England and Wales, blind/disabled. As per Age. As per Age.

with 20.3% in
comparison to 17.9%
with a long-term
health problem or
disability.

e Requests to cut
back
hedges/verges to
ensure path widths
for accessibility.

2021



8TT abed

East Sussex
County Council

What can yom

Protected Wh s~ | What do people tell All potential actions to:

- at do you know?®? 9 : 10 '
characteristics Summary of data you“? _ What do_es thI‘S mean+%? . advance 'equallty of
groups under about your service- Summary of service- Impacts identified from data and opportunity,
the Equality users and/or staff user and/or staff feedback (actual and potential) . eliminate discrimination,
Act 2010 feedback and

. foster good relations
This protected characteristic
is not affected by the
The government highways services and there
tentatively estimate will be no different treatment
Gender g]peprfo;(i)n?:tely We have received no We follow the County Councils for this group.
reassignment4 200.000-500.000 specific comments. equality commitments. We will monitor and take into
trans people in the consideration any feedback
UK. received specific to the trial

and use it to support future
reviews and EqIA’s.

¢ Narrowed footway | Individuals with this protected

by overgrown characteristic may have reduced
vegetation creating | mobility as a result of longer grass.
East Sussex Statistics trip hazards for
Pregnancy and : : .
ot generally follow the prams. Those carrying children or pushing As per age.
maternity . ;
national average. e Access for prams, prams, buggies etc. may be affected
condition of by overgrown footways.
pavements, trips.
As per age.
i ~it\/16 ’
Race/gthnlcny East Su_sse_x S Possible impact that someone may Refer to t_he ESH .
Including population is largely , accessibility statement which
. : We have received no not be able to access or understand )
migrants, made up of White o ) : advises on how to read
”» specific comments. the trial as written on the ESH o .
refugees and British and Northern website website in alternative
asylum seekers | Irish. ) language.

2021 8



East Sussex
County Council

What can yom

61T abed

Protected Wh s~ | What do people tell All potential actions to:

- at do you know?®? 9 : 10 '
characteristics Summary of data you“? _ What do_es thI‘S mean+%? . advance 'equallty of
groups under about your service- Summary of service- Impacts identified from data and opportunity,
the Equality users and/or staff user and/or staff feedback (actual and potential) . eliminate discrimination,
Act 2010 feedback and

. foster good relations
We can also be contacted
directly for alternative
translations.
We will monitor and take into
consideration any feedback
received specific to the trial
and use it to support future
reviews and EqIA’s.
East Sussex follows
the national average We will monitor and take into
Religion or of more than 50% B We have received no . cons_ideration any feedba_ck
beliefl? res_ldent of Christian specific comments No adverse effect on this group. recelved.specmc to the trial
belief and more than ' and use it to support future
25% of residents with reviews and EqlA’s.
no religion.
East Sussex has a We will monitor and take into
larger population of We have received no consideration any feedback
Sex/Gender?8 females than males, ii No adverse effect on this group. received specific to the trial,
as per the 2011 specific comments. and use it to support future
census. reviews and EqlA’s.
2021 9




East Sussex
County Council

What can yom

02T abed

Protected
characteristics
groups under

What do you know?8?
Summary of data
about your service-

What do people tell
you9?
Summary of service-

What does this mean0?
Impacts identified from data and

All potential actions to:
. advance equality of
opportunity,

the Equality users and/or staff user and/or staff feedback (actual and potential) . eliminate discrimination,
Act 2010 feedback and
. foster good relations
Government We will monitor and take into
estimates that 5-7% of . consideration any feedback
Sexual We have received no

orientation!®

the population is
Lesbian, Gay and
Bisexual.

specific comments.

No adverse effect on this group.

received specific to the trial,
and use it to support future
reviews and EqlA’s.

Marriage and
civil
partnership?

East Sussex reflects
the same as
nationally.

We have received no
specific comments.

No adverse effect on this group.

We will monitor and take into
consideration any feedback
received specific to the trial,
and use it to support future
reviews and EqIA’s.

Impacts on
community
cohesion?!

This project covers
the whole of East
Sussex which
includes all Parish,
Town, District,
Borough Councils and
various local
community
associations,
volunteer groups and
communities.

e Some groups and
residences have a
perception that
some areas have
more money spent
on them.

e Or more affluent
areas have more
money spent on
them.

e Orsome areas are
receiving more road
closures than
others causing
unfair disruption

Ability/confidence to use the
highway and access the community
may be affected if footways are
overgrown.

Negative perception of ESH.

Parish/Town Councils had to
agree to take part and notify
residents. Only once this
had been done were they
added to the trial.

We will continue to work with
volunteer groups and
community groups through
community highways
initiatives and stakeholder
engagement.

The highways service has a
good track record in

2021
10




East Sussex
County Council

What can yom

TZT abed

Protected s~ | What do people tell All potential actions to:
characteristics \é\ﬁhrﬁ:ni?yy;udzpaow ? you®? What does this meani®? . advance equality of
groups under about your service- Summary of service- Impacts identified from data and opportunity,
the Equality users and/or staff user and/or staff feedback (actual and potential) . eliminate discrimination,
Act 2010 feedback and
. foster good relations
e Or areas are engaging with parish
forgotten and left to councils, as well as town
look messy. councils in smaller towns, on
e Restricted footway a wide range of issue
access due to through the Strengthening
overgrown Local Relations (SLR) and
grass/vegetation. the Community Highways
Initiatives.
2021

11



2eT abed

Additional categories

(identified locally as potentially causing / worsening inequality)

East Sussex
County Council

5
i

Characteristic

What do you know???

What do people tell
you?3?

What does this mean?4?

What can you do?°?

Rurality?®

The landscape in East
Sussex is
predominantly rural,
however the majority of
the population live in
urban areas, 58% live
in the coastal urban
areas and a further
18% live in market
towns

Narrowed footway by
overgrown vegetation
creating trip hazards.
Residents have a
perception that rural
lanes can be forgotten
in terms of
maintenance.
Resident perception
that rural areas are
forgotten.

Overgrown verges
reduce the

Owing to the higher proportion of
verges and vegetation in rural areas
and lower proportion of footways,
people in rural areas are more likely
to be affected by this trial.

Lack of footways is more common in
rural areas than urban areas.
Frequency of verge cuts will all
affect how accessible verges are for
pedestrians to take refuge from
traffic in areas where there are no
footways.

Pedestrians in rural areas often
have no choice but to walk along
roads without footways to access
local services, bus stops,
neighbours etc. It can be more
difficult or impossible to walk on
verges through long vegetation.

If the trial means that, at certain
times of the year, vegetation is
overgrown to the extent where it
means pedestrians have to walk in
the carriageway, this will have a

As per age and
community cohesion.

We will monitor and
take into
consideration any
feedback received
specific to the trial,
and use it to support
future reviews and
EqlA’s.

2021

12



East Sussex
County Council

€21 abed

Characteristic

What do you know?2?

What do people tell
you?3?

What does this mean?4?

What cai yo=u EIOZJ; =

negative impact on their safety (real
and perceived) and could reduce
their ability to access the local
community/services.

However, the rural character of the
non-urban part of the county is a
major attractant to many of those
who live there and especially those
who visit as tourists. Reduced
verge cuts can have aesthetic and
economic benefits in these areas.

The maintenance requirements in
rural areas are often different to
urban areas, because of the
environment, how the road network
is used and expectations about how
the countryside should look.

Carers

East Sussex has an
aging population.
Therefore, it could be
inferred that carers will
align with this aspect.

e Ensuring access to
property.

e Trip Hazards.

e Reporting issues for
disabled / elderly.

As per age.

As per age.

We will monitor and
take into
consideration any
feedback received
specific to the trial,
and use it to support
future reviews and
EqlA’s.

2021

13




21 abed

East Sussex
County Council

What does this mean?4? What cai yo=u EIOZJ; =

We would continue to
follow relevant ESCC
policies.

What do people tell

Characteristic What do you know?2? 23
you=>?

ESH aim to
communicate with
service users in an
accessible, easy to

. .
22.6% of people in understand manner.

East Sussex do not
hold a qualification,
which is comparable to
national levels (22.7%)
but not as low as the
South East 19.1%). People with poor literacy and
Low However it is difficult to Reports of difficulty numeracy skills may strugg.le when
) guantify the level of . contacting the service, particularly if
Literacy/Numeracy i completing forms i
iteracy and numeracy they are required to complete a form
because the lack of a or are issued with a written notice.
formal qualification
does not mean a
person has poor
literacy or numeracy
skills, although it does
makes it more likely.

There is always an
option to phone the
service and the form
be completed by a
customer service
advisor instead.

We will monitor and
take into
consideration any
feedback received
specific to the trial,
and use it to support
future reviews and
EqlA’s.

As per race/ethnicity.

2021 14



East Sussex
County Council

What do people tell
you?3?

What does this mean?*? What cai yo=u EIOZJ; =

Characteristic What do you know?2?

Other groups that
may be differently
affected (including
but not only:
homeless people,
substance users,
care leavers — see
end note)?’

Assessment of overall impacts and any further recommendations?® - include assessment of cumulative impacts (where a change in
one service/policy/project may have an impact on another)

GeT abed

East Sussex County Council, as the Highway Authority, has a statutory duty to maintain the highway (Highways Act, 1980) which
includes the highway verges and vegetation. However, there are no specific statutory requirements regarding the maintenance of
highway verges and vegetation alongside the public highway.

Over time, local authorities including East Sussex County Council, have developed standards in line with national codes of practice and
local policy requirements to ensure safety, serviceability and sustainability needs are met. Visibility at junctions, the safety of road users
and the effect of vegetation on highway drainage and footways are the main reasons for controlling vegetation on verges.

There is a statutory duty on service providers under the Equality Act 2010 to take reasonable steps to remove or alter physical features to
improve access for people with disabilities or provide an alternative method of making services available.

All local authorities have a duty towards biodiversity under the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. Recent guidance
also recommends that vegetation on the highway network should be managed with regard to their value for nature conservation and
biodiversity to encourage more wildlife e.g. in meadow verges. Reduced cutting of highways verges supports this duty.

Feedback from the 2021, 2022, 2023 trial showed that the main concern from residents was that verges were untidy and an increase dog
waste/ litter in verges. Aesthetics of verges are not part of the Councils highway duty; however, we do have regard to resident concerns
and feedback. Litter is the responsibility of the Borough/District Councils, which we continue to have communication with.

2021 15



92T abed

East Sussex
County Council

Characteristic

What do you know?2?

What do people tell
you?3?

What does this mean?4?

What cai yo=u EIOZJ; =

A couple of residents highlighted an issue with the width of footpaths due to the long grass folding over.

Any visibility, safety or accessibility issues as a result of the verges were picked up as standard and rectified through the usual process in
through the trial.

We cannot fully understand the impact of this reduction until the trial is complete. Therefore it was decided to undertake a trial rather than
go to a fully policy change immediately. This allows feedback from those with protected characteristics to be evaluated and consideration

given to any issues raised.

2021

16



/2T abed

3. List detailed data and/or community feedback that informed your EqlA

East Sussex
County Council

5
i

Source and type of data (e.qg.
research, or direct engagement

Actions to fill these gaps: who else
do you need to engage with?

(interviews), responses to Date Gaps in data (add these to the Action Plan below,
guestionnaires, etc.) with a timeframe)
2021 feedback to the trial 2021 Some residents may have not been Aptlon: Promote on social media the
aware of the feedback form. trial and feedback form.
Salesforce — customer phone calls, Possible gap if the Customer Service Action: going forward remind thg
. May 2016- ) team of the importance of capturing
emails, web reports and letters . Advisor has not logged the inf . I h ith
logged on this system ongoing information properly Information relevant to those wit
' ' protected characteristics.
Action: ensure public consultations
. . . Not all those effected will respond to | are as easy as possible to complete
Public Consultations Various . ; :
consultations. and are widely published. Ensure a
variety of groups are engaged with.
Possible gap if not all information has
been logged properly.
Cust_omer queries and complaints : In relation to Highways, people tend Action: increased engagement with
received by CMG and departmental | Ongoing :
. to report complaints over stakeholders and customers.
officers. ,
compliments. Therefore, we are not
informed what is working well and
what we can do more of.
SLR meetinas Twice Not all Parish and Town Councils take | Action: remind Parish and Town
9 Yearly up the offer to have an SLR meeting. | Councils of the option.

2021

17



8zT abed

East Sussex
County Council

Customer Surveys e.g. smiley face /
NHT.

Various

Not everyone will respond.

Unhappy residents are more likely to
respond.

Action: increased and

engagement with stakeholders and
customers. Engagement of
contractors measured within the
contract.

2021

18



East Sussex
County Council

5
i

4.  Prioritised Action Plan?®
NB: These actions must now be transferred to service or business plans and monitored to ensure they achieve the outcomes

6¢T abed

identified.

Impact identified and
group(s) affected

Action planned

Expected outcome

Measure of success

Timeframe

Visibility, narrow
footpaths, inaccessible
verges.

Age, disability,
pregnancy and
maternity, rural,
community cohesion.

More information on
effects of reduction in
rural grass cutting from
feedback form and
customer
correspondence.

Review EqIA following
the verge cutting season
to see if changes have
had a significant impact
on those with protected
characteristics.

To minimise impact on
customers with these
protected characteristics,
we will ensure an efficient
process (described
above) whereby we can
respond to issues
(especially relating to any
visibility or access) in
appropriate timescales.

Increase in reports of
issues from those with
protected
characteristics.

Over time, it will be
possible to identify
hotspots that routinely
cause problems and a
more proactive
approach can be taken
in these areas subject
to funds being
available.

No negative feedback or
complaints.

Duration of Trial.

2021

19




0¢T abed

East Sussex
County Council

o

(Add more rows as needed)

EqlA sign-off: (for the EglA to be final an email must be sent from the relevant people agreeing it, or this section must be signed)
Staff member competing Equality Impact Analysis: Fenella Lillywhite 27/10/2023
Directorate Management Team rep or Head of Service: Pippa Mabey 27/10/2023

Equality lead: Sarah Tighe-Ford 27/10/2023

2021 20



TET abed

East Sussex
County Council

5
i

Guidance end-notes

! The following principles, drawn from case law, explain what we must do to fulfil our duties under the Equality Act:

e Knowledge: everyone working for the Council must be aware of the Council’s duties under the Equality Act 2010 and ensure

they comply with them appropriately in their daily work.

Timeliness: the duty applies at the time of considering policy options and/or before a final decision is taken — not afterwards.

Real Consideration: the duty must be an integral, rigorous part of your decision-making process and influence the process.

Sufficient Information: you must assess what information you have and what is further needed to give proper consideration.

No delegation: the Council is responsible for ensuring that any contracted services, which are provided on its behalf need

also to comply with the same legal obligations under the Equality Act of 2010. You need, therefore, to ensure that the relevant

contracts make these obligations clear to the supplier. It is a duty that cannot be delegated.

e Review: the equality duty is a continuing duty. It applies when a policy or service is developed/agreed, and when it is
implemented and reviewed.

e Proper Record Keeping: to prove that the Council has fulfilled its legal obligations under the Equality Act you must keep
records of the process you follow and the impacts identified.

NB: Filling out this EqIA in itself does not meet the requirements of the Council’s equality duty. All the requirements above must
be fulfilled, or the EqIA (and any decision based on it) may be open to challenge. An EglA therefore can provide evidence that the
Council has taken practical steps comply with its equality duty and provide a record that to demonstrate that it has done so.

2 Qur duties in the Equality Act 2010

As a public sector organisation, we have a legal duty (under the Equality Act 2010) to show that we have identified and considered
the actual and potential impact of our activities on people who share any of the legally ‘protected characteristics’ (age, disability,
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, and marriage and civil partnership).

This applies to policies, services (including commissioned services), and our employees. The level of detail of this consideration
will depend on the nature of your project, who it might affect, those groups’ vulnerability, and the seriousness of any potential
impacts it might have. We use this EglA template to gather information and assess the impact of our project in these areas.

The following are the duties in the Act. You must give ‘due regard’ (pay conscious attention) to the need to:

e avoid, reduce, minimise or eliminate any negative impact (if you identify unlawful discrimination, including victimisation
and harassment, you must stop the action and take advice immediately).

2021 21



ZeT abed

East Sussex
County Council

o

Mlll
AN
promote equality of opportunity. This means the need to:

— Remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by equality groups

— Take steps to meet the needs of equality groups

— Encourage equality groups to participate in public life or any other activity where participation is disproportionately low

— Consider if there is a need to treat disabled people differently, including more favourable treatment where necessary
foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not. This means:

— Tackle prejudice

— Promote understanding

3 EqlAs are always proportionate to:

The nature of the service, or scope of the policy/strategy
The resources involved

The number of people affected

The size of the likely impact

The vulnerability of the people affected

The greater the potential adverse impact of the proposed service or policy on a protected group (e.g. disabled people), the more
thorough and demanding our process must be so that we comply with the Equality Act of 2010.

4 Title of EqlA: This should clearly explain what service / policy / strategy / change you are assessing

> Team/Department: Main team responsible for the policy, practice, service or function being assessed

6 Focus of EqlA: A member of the public should have a good understanding of the policy or service and any proposals after
reading this section. Please use plain English and write any acronyms in full first time - eg: ‘Equality Impact Analysis (EqlA)’

This section should explain what you are assessing:

2021

What are the main aims or purpose of the service, policy, strategy, practice, or function?

Who implements, carries out or delivers the service, policy, strategy, practice, or function? Please state where this is more
than one person/team/body and where other organisations deliver under procurement or partnership arrangements.

How does it fit with other services?

22



ceT abed

East Sussex
County Council

o

Who is affected by the service, policy, strategy, practice, or function, or by how it is delivered? Who are the external and

internal service-users, groups, or communities?

What outcomes do you want to achieve, why and for whom? Eg: what do you want to provide, what changes, or
improvements, are required and what should the benefits be?

What do existing or previous reviews of the service, policy, strategy, practice, or function indicate to you?

What is the reason for the proposal, or change (financial, service scope, legal requirements, etc)? The Equality Act requires
us to make these clear.

" Previous actions: If there is no previous EqlA, or this assessment is for a new service, then simply write ‘not applicable’.

8 Data: Make sure you have enough information to inform your EqlA.

What data relevant to the impact on protected groups of the policy/decision/service is available?®

What further evidence is needed and how can you get it? (Eg: further research or engagement with the affected groups).
What do you already know about needs, access and outcomes? Focus on each of the protected characteristics in turn. Eg:
who uses the service? Who doesn’t and why? Are there differences in outcomes? Why?

Have there been any important demographic changes or trends locally? What might they mean for the service or function?
Does data/monitoring show that any policies or practices create particular problems or difficulties for any groups?

Do any equality objectives already exist? What is current performance like against them?

Is the service having a positive or negative effect on particular people in the community, or particular groups / communities?

9 Engagement: You must engage appropriately with those likely to be affected to fulfil the Council’s duties under the Equality Act.

2021

What do people tell you about the services, the policy or the strategy?
Are there patterns or differences in what people from different groups tell you?
What information or data will you need from communities?
How should people be consulted? Consider:
(a) consult when proposals are still at a formative stage;
(b) explain what is proposed and why, to allow intelligent consideration and response;
(c) allow enough time for consultation;
(d) make sure what people tell you is properly considered in the final decision.
Try to consult in ways that ensure all different perspectives can be captured and considered.
Identify any gaps in who has been consulted and identify ways to address this.

23



y¢T1 abed

East Sussex
County Council

o

NAAY
AIAAS

10 Your EgIA must get to grips fully and properly with actual and potential impacts.

The Council’s obligations under the Equality Act of 2010 do not stop you taking decisions, or introducing well needed
changes; however, they require that you take decisions and make changes conscientiously and deliberately confront the
anticipated impacts on people.

Be realistic: don’t exaggerate speculative risks and negative impacts.

Be detailed and specific so decision-makers have a concrete sense of potential effects. Instead of “the policy is likely to
disadvantage older women”, say how many or what percentage are likely to be affected, how, and to what extent.
Questions to ask when assessing impacts depend on the context. Examples:

Are one or more protected groups affected differently and/or disadvantaged? How, and to what extent?

Is there evidence of higher/lower uptake among different groups? Which, and to what extent?

If there are likely to be different impacts on different groups, is that consistent with the overall objective?

If there is negative differential impact, how can you minimise that while taking into account your overall aims

Do the effects amount to unlawful discrimination? If so, the plan must be modified.

Does the proposal advance equality of opportunity and/or foster good relations? If not, could it?

0O O O O O O

11 Consider all three aims of the Act: removing barriers, and also identifying positive actions to be taken.

Where you have identified impacts you must state what actions will be taken to remove, reduce or avoid any negative
impacts and maximise any positive impacts or advance equality of opportunity.

Be specific and detailed and explain how far these actions are expected to address the negative impacts.

If mitigating measures are contemplated, explain clearly what the measures are, and the extent to which they can be
expected to reduce / remove the adverse effects identified.

An EqIA which has attempted to airbrush the facts is an EqIA that is vulnerable to challenge.

12 Age: People of all ages

13 Disability: A person is disabled if they have a physical or mental impairment which has a substantial and long-term adverse
effect on their ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities. The definition includes: sensory impairments, impairments with
fluctuating or recurring effects, progressive, organ specific, developmental, learning difficulties, mental health conditions and mental
illnesses, produced by injury to the body or brain. Persons with cancer, multiple sclerosis or HIV infection are all now deemed to be
disabled persons from the point of diagnosis. Carers of disabled people are protected within the Act by association.

2021

24



GeT abed

East Sussex
County Council

14 Gender Reassignment: In the Act a transgender person is someone who proposes to, starts or has completed a process to
change his or her gender. A person does not need to be under medical supervision to be protected

15 pregnancy and Maternity: Protection is during pregnancy and any statutory maternity leave to which the woman is entitled.

16 Race/Ethnicity: This includes ethnic or national origins, colour or nationality, and includes refugees and migrants, and Gypsies
and Travellers. Refugees and migrants means people whose intention is to stay in the UK for at least twelve months (excluding
visitors, short term students or tourists). This definition includes asylum seekers; voluntary and involuntary migrants; people who
are undocumented; and the children of migrants, even if they were born in the UK.

17 Religion and Belief: Religion includes any religion with a clear structure and belief system. Belief means any religious or
philosophical belief. The Act also covers lack of religion or belief.

18 Sex/Gender: Both men and women are covered under the Act.
19 Sexual Orientation: The Act protects bisexual, gay, heterosexual and leshian people
20 Marriage and Civil Partnership: Only in relation to due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination.

22 Community Cohesion: potential impacts on how well people from different communities get on together. The council has a legal
duty to foster good relations between groups of people who share different protected characteristics. Some actions or policies may
have impacts — or perceived impacts — on how groups see one another or in terms of how the council’s resources are seen to be
allocated. There may also be opportunities to positively impact on good relations between groups.

22 Data: Make sure you have enough information to inform your EqlA.
e What data relevant to the impact on protected groups of the policy/decision/service is available???
e What further evidence is needed and how can you get it? (Eg: further research or engagement with the affected groups).
e What do you already know about needs, access and outcomes? Focus on each of the protected characteristics in turn. Eg:
who uses the service? Who doesn’t and why? Are there differences in outcomes? Why?
e Have there been any important demographic changes or trends locally? What might they mean for the service or function?
e Does data/monitoring show that any policies or practices create particular problems or difficulties for any groups?
e Do any equality objectives already exist? What is current performance like against them?

2021 25



9¢T abed

East Sussex
County Council

o

Is the service having a positive or negative effect on particular people in the community, or particular groups or
communities?

23 Engagement: You must engage appropriately with those likely to be affected to fulfil the Council’s duties under the Equality Act .

What do people tell you about the services, the policy or the strategy?
Are there patterns or differences in what people from different groups tell you?
What information or data will you need from communities?
How should people be consulted? Consider:
(a) consult when proposals are still at a formative stage;
(b) explain what is proposed and why, to allow intelligent consideration and response;
(c) allow enough time for consultation;
(d) make sure what people tell you is properly considered in the final decision.
Try to consult in ways that ensure all different perspectives can be captured and considered.
Identify any gaps in who has been consulted and identify ways to address this.

24 Your EqIA must get to grips fully and properly with actual and potential impacts.

The Council’s obligations under the Equality Act of 2010 do not stop you taking decisions, or introducing well needed
changes; however, they require that take decisions and make changes conscientiously and deliberately confront the
anticipated impacts on people.

Be realistic: don’t exaggerate speculative risks and negative impacts.

Be detailed and specific so decision-makers have a concrete sense of potential effects. Instead of “the policy is likely to
disadvantage older women”, say how many or what percentage are likely to be affected, how, and to what extent.
Questions to ask when assessing impacts depend on the context. Examples:

Are one or more protected groups affected differently and/or disadvantaged? How, and to what extent?

Is there evidence of higher/lower uptake among different groups? Which, and to what extent?

If there are likely to be different impacts on different groups, is that consistent with the overall objective?

If there is negative differential impact, how can you minimise that while taking into account your overall aims
Do the effects amount to unlawful discrimination? If so the plan must be modified.

Does the proposal advance equality of opportunity and/or foster good relations? If not, could it?

O O O O O O

25 Consider all three aims of the Act: removing barriers, and also identifying positive actions to be taken.

2021

26



/€T abed

East Sussex
County Council

WII Mlll
AN
e Where you have identified impacts you must state what actions will be taken to remove, reduce or avoid any negative

impacts and maximise any positive impacts or advance equality of opportunity.
e Be specific and detailed and explain how far these actions are expected to address the negative impacts.
o If mitigating measures are contemplated, explain clearly what the measures are, and the extent to which they can be

expected to reduce / remove the adverse effects identified.
e An EglA which has attempted to airbrush the facts is an EqlA that is vulnerable to challenge.

26 Rurality: deprivation is experienced differently between people living in rural and urban areas. In rural areas issues can include
isolation, access to services (eg: GPs, pharmacies, libraries, schools), low income / part-time work, infrequent public transport, high
transport costs, lack of affordable housing and higher fuel costs. Deprivation can also be more dispersed and less visible.

27 Other groups that may be differently affected: this may vary by services, but examples include: homeless people, substance
misusers, people experiencing domestic/sexual violence, looked after children or care leavers, current or former armed forces
personnel (or their families), people on the Autistic spectrum etc.

28 Assessment of overall impacts and any further recommendations

e Make a frank and realistic assessment of the overall extent to which the negative impacts can be reduced or avoided by the
mitigating measures. Explain what positive impacts will result from the actions and how you can make the most of these.

o Countervailing considerations: These may include the reasons behind the formulation of the policy, the benefits it is
expected to deliver, budget reductions, the need to avert a graver crisis by introducing a policy now and not later, and so on.
The weight of these factors in favour of implementing the policy must then be measured against the weight of any evidence
as to the potential negative equality impacts of the policy.

e Are there any further recommendations? Is further engagement needed? Is more research or monitoring needed? Does
there need to be a change in the proposal itself?

29 Action Planning: The Council’s obligation under the Equality Act of 2010 is an ongoing duty: policies must be kept under review,

continuing to give ‘due regard’ to the duty. If an assessment of a broad proposal leads to more specific proposals, then further
equality assessment and consultation are needed.

2021 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4

Appendix 4 — Defects

Data for Weeks 17-37 only (grass season)

Please note data from May 2023 is recorded slightly differently however we

have endeavoured to compare like for like.

Grass visibility defects

Year Areas Not in Trial Trial Total % In trial
Areas area
2018 57 10 67 15%
2019 47 11 58 19%
2020 23 11 34 32%
2021 85 29 114 25%
2022 92 44 136 32%
2023 33 20 53 37%
All grass defects
Year Areas Not in Trial Trial Total % In trial
Areas area
2018 179 37 216 17%
2019 153 41 194 21%
2020 74 28 102 27%
2021 169 60 229 26%
2022 135 74 209 35%
2023 127 20 147 13%

Page 139




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 5

EAST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL

LEAD MEMBER - TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT

POLICY SUMMARY

PS 7/2

Highway Verges and Vegetation

Purpose of Policy

East Sussex County Council (ESCC) recognises the vital role played by the local highway network.

The purpose of this policy is to set out the standards for the maintenance of highway verges and

vegetation to achieve a

sustainability.

balance between statutory obligations, safety, serviceability and

Policy Statement

1) Verge cutting

a. The standards adopted for verge cutting throughout the County will be dependent upon
the funds available in the maintenance budget.

The County Council (or its duly appointed agents) will carry out the following cuts to
verges. In this context, urban areas are, unless determined otherwise, defined as built up
locations with a 20, 30 or 40mph speed limit. All other areas are rural.

i. In Rural Areas will receive either:

1.

Standard Service: two cuts per annum of a 1 metre wide swathe and
visibility areas cut for visibility at junctions and for safety on the inside
of bends where sight lines between road users may be obscured by
vegetation

Environmental Enhancement Service: one visibility areas cut for
visibility at junctions and for safety on the inside of bends where sight
lines between road users may be obscured by vegetation, at start of
season and one standard 1 metre wide swathe cut and visibility areas
later in the season. As requested by Parish or Town Councils.

ii. In Urban Areas will receive either:

1.
2.

3.

Standard Service: two cuts per annum.

Extra cuts: additional cuts funded by Parish or Town Councils totalling
6 cuts per annum.

Self Delivery: The Parish or Town Council takes on responsibility to
deliver all urban grass cutting in their area, with a minimum of at least
2 cuts. Contribution of cost of 2 cuts from the County Council to the
Parish or Town Council.

Additional cuts may be carried out at junctions and sight lines where the County Council
deem it to be necessary for safety reasons where visibility is reduced.

Further cuts may be carried out where additional funding is available.

Areas of verge listed and marked as being of wildlife interest, will be specially maintained
according to the needs of the individual verge.

A full cut back of the county verges to the highway boundary will be completed every four

Page 141




years on a rotating schedule.
2) Weed Control - street furniture, paved areas and kerbs/channels

Where herbicides are used for the treatment of weeds, weeds will only be treated using
herbicides from the Health and Safety Executive’s Pesticides Register of UK Authorised
Products suitable for use on highways

3) Hedge Trimming

a. Hedges which are adjacent to the road/footway and are the responsibility of the County
Council will be trimmed once a year.

b. Where the County Council determine that there are special requirements in visibility
areas, cutting will be undertaken when required.

4) Trees

a. Highway trees should only receive maintenance at County Council expense for reasons of
health and safety, access and visibility on the highway or where they are causing damage
to property. Tree maintenance work shall be undertaken in line with the recommendations
of BS 3998: 2010 (‘Tree work’).

b. Third parties may be given the opportunity to become involved in the provision of new trees
on the Highway where appropriate.

5) Siding

a. Inrural areas only the minimum amount of siding (trimming of verges along the pavement)
should be carried out on carriageways, e.g. when needed before surface dressing and the
renewal of edge markings, since in most cases the traffic keeps the carriageway clear.

b. On footways, only the minimum amount of siding should be carried out to preserve an
adequate width of footway for all types of pedestrian traffic where this is considered
necessary on an ad-hoc basis.

6) Third parties

a. The Highway Authority may authorise third parties to carry out the above services or
additional works to highway verges and vegetation at their own expense. E.g.
- farmers in the county wishing to use suitable verges for haymaking;
- individuals and organisations wishing to manage verges for wildlife or amenity purposes.

b. Any areas planted by third parties acting under licence will be maintained by the licensee
unless otherwise agreed with the County Council (refer to PS 8/6 Roadside Sponsorship)

Supporting Information

Well-managed Highway Infrastructure, 2016, UK Roads Liaison Group

Version control Date of last review:

H&T Committee - 22 March 1974 22.03.1974
H&T Committee - 22 October 1980 - Agenda Item 5. 23 28.10.1975

Page 142




H&T Committee - 16 December 1980 - Agenda Item 6. 2 16.12.1980
H&T Committee - 11 December 1984 - Agenda Item 7 11.12.1984
H&T Committee - 31 May 1989 - Agenda Item 18. 31.05.1989

H&T Committee - 25 March 1975 - Agenda Item 8. 25.03.1975

H&T Committee - 16 September 1992 - Agenda Item 9. 16.09.1992
H&T Committee - 19 October 1994 - Agenda Item 19. 19.10.1994
T&E Committee - 10 March 1998 - Agenda Item 6. 10.03.1998

Lead Member for Transport and Environment — 21.05.2018

Page 143




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Report to: Lead Member for Transport and Environment

Date of meeting: 11 December 2023

By: Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

Title: Community Match Schemes for 2024/25

Purpose: To consider expenditure for 2024/25 as contribution towards

Community Match schemes

RECOMMENDATIONS: The Lead Member is recommended to:

(1) Agreethat £20,000 of match funding is allocated towards the Etchingham Community
Match speed reduction scheme for detailed design work and construction in 2024/25;

(2) Agree that £11,500 of match funding is allocated towards the Icklesham Parish
Council Community Match bus stop and accessibility improvement scheme for
detailed design work and construction in 2024/25;

(3) Agree that £1,930 of match funding is allocated towards Pett Parish Council for the
Community Match application for the installation of 13 bollards along a popular
walking route:

(4) Delegate authority to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport to
approve the 50% match funding contribution for the schemes in recommendations 1
and 2, up to a maximum contribution of £60,000 per scheme once the design and
construction costs are known; and

(5) Delegate authority to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport to agree
the terms and conditions of the grant funding agreement with Pett Parish Council for
the £1,930 grant from the Community Match funding allocation towards the scheme
as set out in recommendation 3.

1 Background Information

1.1. The Community Match initiative was launched by the County Council in 2014. The initiative
offers the opportunity for local communities in East Sussex (typically a Parish or Town Council or
community group) to take forward schemes identified as a local priority, but not assessed to be of
sufficient priority to be delivered using County Council funding alone through the Council’s capital
programme of local transport improvements.

1.2. The Community Match process begins with a feasibility study to assist parishes and
communities in identifying possible solutions to locally identified traffic or transport issues and
determining cost estimates. The feasibility study is undertaken by East Sussex Highways and is
funded by the Parish or Town Council, residents’ group or organisation promoting the scheme.
Many potential schemes do not progress beyond the feasibility stage as it becomes clear that the
scheme is not feasible or would be too expensive to deliver using parish funding, or there is no
agreement among local residents and businesses about the scheme proposals.

1.3. If a Parish or Town Council or community group support the measures suggested in the
feasibility appraisal, they can apply to the County Council for Community Match funds to take the
scheme forward to detailed design and construction. The maximum financial input from the County
Council is £60,000 per scheme, which needs to be matched by the Parish Council or community
group. The feasibility appraisals are only able to give approximate scheme costs and more detailed
scheme costs can be provided to applicants as more design work is undertaken. As part of the
Community Match funding applications, the relevant County Councillors are asked whether they
are supportive of the proposed Community Match schemes in their division.

Page 145



1.4. The delivery of Community Match Schemes will help contribute towards the County Council
priorities of making best use of resources now and for the future and keeping vulnerable people
safe.

2 Supporting Information
Community Match Schemes for 2024/2025

2.1.  Asum of £250,000 has been allocated from East Sussex County Council’'s (ESCC) 2024/25
Capital Programme for Local Transport Improvements to match-fund improvement schemes of
local importance through the Community Match programme. Any in-year underspend will continue
to be reallocated to fund additional community focused road safety interventions and schemes.

2.2.  Although there have been many Community Match feasibility studies requested, only three
applications have been received requesting funding to take schemes forward. It is important that
projects have strong support from the local community and that they comply with relevant County
Council policies.

2.3. A summary of the schemes, together with estimated total costs, community contribution and
Community Match Fund contributions, is shown below. The community contribution will be at least
50% of the detailed design and construction costs for each scheme. The final costs will likely vary
from the current estimate once the detailed design has been undertaken and the scheme fully
costed. Therefore, the level of Community Match Fund contribution allocated to each project, with
a maximum contribution of £60,000 per project, may change depending on the final cost. The
County Councillor for each of the schemes has indicated their support.

Scheme Total cost Community ESCC
contribution | Community
Match Fund

contribution

Etchingham Parish Council — Introduction of circa £40,000 £20,000 £20,000
two sections of 40mph speed limits along the
A265.

Speed limit reductions implemented between
the eastern end of Etchingham and Hurst
Green and between the western end of
Etchingham and Burwash.

The scheme would be delivered through the
East Sussex Highways contract.

Icklesham Parish Council — Scheme to circa £23,000 £11,500 £11,500
improve a bus stop in Sea Road,
Winchelsea.

High access kerbing to be introduced to
improve accessibility and aid passengers
alighting the busses. New kerbing to be
installed and a replacement to existing bus
stop post and re-erection of existing flag,
timetable and litter bin.

The scheme would be delivered through the
East Sussex Highways contract. Assets to be
owned and maintained by ESCC.

Page 146



Pett Parish Council — Introduction of 13 £3,860.00 £1,930.00f £1,930.00
Passive bollards on a highways verge to
improve accessibility and visibility along a
popular walking route.

Risks

24 Communities will be recharged their share of the detailed design and construction work. In
addition, for Community Match schemes there is a notable risk around delivering schemes that
include speed limit or parking changes which require a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO), and the
increase in costs that comes with delivering these types of schemes due to the additional resource
and administration required. If formal objections to TROs are received and cannot be resolved by
discussion with the objector, they must be considered by the Planning Committee. This process
adds both time and cost to the scheme.

3 Conclusion and Reasons for Recommendations

3.1. The Community Match programme continues to provide the opportunity for Town or Parish
councils, local resident groups and organisations to secure match funding to enable local priority
schemes to be delivered which otherwise would not come forward using County Council funding
alone through the capital programme of local transport improvements. From the £250,000
allocation for 2024/25, there is sufficient funding available to provide the community match funding
required to deliver the schemes that have submitted applications.

3.2.  Therefore, the Lead Member is recommended to allocate £20,000 of community match
funding to the speed reduction scheme in Etchingham on the A265, £11,500 to the bus stop
improvement scheme in Icklesham, and £1,930 for the installation of bollards in Pett Parish.

3.3. Delegation has been requested to pass authority to the Director of Communities, Economy
and Transport who will progress schemes to the next stage, without the need to present at Lead
Member again.

RUPERT CLUBB
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

Contact Officer: Victoria Rojanachotikul
Email: Victoria.rojanachotikul@eastsussex.gov.uk

LOCAL MEMBERS
Councillor Elanor Kirby-Green
Councillor Keith Glazier

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Etchingham Feasibility Study
Icklesham Feasibility Study

Pett Parish Council Licence Agreement

Page 147



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

Report to: Lead Member for Transport and Environment

Date of meeting: 11 December 2023

By: Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

Title: Changes to the Chargeable Waste Service at East Sussex County

Council Household Waste Recycling Sites

Purpose: To consider introduction of a free allowance to the chargeable waste
scheme.

RECOMMENDATIONS: The Lead Member is recommended to:

(1) Note the requirement to change the Chargeable Waste Scheme at Household Waste
Recycling Sites;

(2) Delegate authority to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport to
amend the current scheme, as outlined in paragraph 2.5 and Appendix 1 of this
report, from 31 December 2023;

(3) Agree to the recommended price increase for paid for non-household waste
(beyond the expected free allowance) from 1 April 2024, as set out in paragraph 3.5
of this report; and

(4) Delegate authority to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport to make
future changes, as required, to the amended scheme and policy and charges.

1 Background Information

1.1. East Sussex County Council (ESCC) introduced the chargeable waste scheme at
household waste recycling sites (HWRS) in October 2018. Charges apply to rubble, soil,
plasterboard, tyres and asbestos. The Controlled Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 2012
(the 2012 Regulations) defines waste from “construction, improvement, repair, alteration or
demolition works, including preparatory works” as industrial waste, irrespective of where it is
produced. There is no requirement for ESCC to accept industrial waste free of charge.

1.2.  Around half of councils charge for non-household waste. The charges partially cover the
costs, and no profit is made by the scheme.

1.3. The network of 10 HWRS across East Sussex is an important service and is popular with
residents. The sites receive around 1.6 million visits per year and handle approximately a quarter
of the total waste that East Sussex residents produce. The sites recycle, compost, or reuse almost
60% of the materials that are delivered by residents. During the last financial year, the chargeable
waste scheme took 18,000 transactions and saved over £520,000 on chargeable materials.

1.4. Without any form of chargeable waste scheme in place, the effect to the Authority would
be up to £1.3m per year in additional costs. When the scheme was introduced, it had an impact on
other waste types and additional savings were made as a result. Officers believe the scheme has
reduced trade waste abuse at the sites. Removing the charging scheme would risk a return of this
additional waste and a significant increase in costs to the service over and above the direct costs
associated with chargeable waste.

Page 149



2 Supporting Information

2.1. From 11 April to 4 July 2022, the Department for Environment, Food & Rural Affairs (Defra)
consulted on charges for “do it yourself” (DIY) type waste at household waste recycling centres
and issued a call for evidence on booking systems at household waste recycling centres.

2.2 Defra takes the view that small amounts of DIY waste generated by householders should
be classified as household waste, allowing limited quantities to be disposed of free of charge.

2.3 In June 2023, Defra published a summary of responses and government response to the
consultation, reiterating its position that small amounts of DIY waste generated by householders
should be classified as household waste, allowing it to be disposed of free of charge. In order to
implement its policy position, the government will amend the 2012 Regulations and this change will
take effect from 31 December 2023. The 2012 Regulations enable ESCC to operate its chargeable
waste scheme.

Change to legislation
2.4  The Statutory Instrument laid before Parliament on the 22 November 2023 will amend the
2012 Regulations from 31 December 2023 to restrict charging.

25 Defra’s consultation response states the following:

“...that construction waste be classified as DIY waste when four criteria are met:”

a) the waste is produced by householders whilst carrying out small-scale construction or
demolition works at their home.

b) the waste does not arise from activities that generate an income for the person who carried
them out.

The third and fourth criteria below (from the Statutory Instrument) allude to government’s stipulation
for a ‘free allowance’:

c) the amount of waste delivered to any waste disposal site in a single visit is either less than
100 litres and capable of being fitted into two 50 litre bags, or a single article of waste no
larger than 2000mm x 750mm x 700mm in size (the approximate size of a bathtub or shower
screen).

d) the waste delivered to waste deposit sites does not exceed four single visits per household
in any four-week period (to be administered in East Sussex as one visit per week).

2.6 These rules will allow local authorities to charge for ‘DIY’ material above and beyond the
volumes as outlined in the third and fourth criteria (‘c’ and ‘d’ above). Monitoring and enforcing
these limits present difficulties in terms of on-site administration of the scheme. Tonnage volumes
and transactions will be monitored, and it is possible that further measures may need to be
introduced in the future to effectively manage the amended charging scheme.

2.7 The government has provided a draft list of materials that can be charged for but only after
the four criteria above are met and the free allowance applied. Whilst it includes rubble, soil, and
plasterboard, it also includes additional materials that could be charged for which, currently, are
free to dispose of at HWRS in East Sussex. Asbestos and tyres are still non-household waste and
can be charged for in full under the existing scheme. At this point, ESCC is not intending to expand
the list of materials it charges for within the current scheme.

Page 150


https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/household-waste-recycling-centres-diy-waste-disposal-charges-and-booking-systems/outcome/summary-of-responses-and-government-response

Implementation of required changes and financial impact
2.8 Officers are currently preparing the required changes to ESCC’s scheme.

29 The existing scheme works well with a very low level of resident complaints. As ESCC is
operating a tried and tested service, Officers intend to adapt in a way that complies with the new
regulations, but which keeps the scheme format as close to the existing scheme as possible.

2.10 ESCC will do this by adopting the framework as above in 2.5 which will allow for a two free
50 litre bag limit of rubble, soil, and plasterboard. Deposits that exceed the free allowance will
continue to be charged for. ESCC will monitor the amended scheme to assess the impact on
tonnage levels and disposal savings. Appendix 1 contains the draft updated Chargeable Waste
Policy which will be finalised, subject to the new legislation coming into force, and approval by the
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport.

2.11 The financial impact of adopting the required charging model, and the impact of charges
being totally removed with no restrictions on deposits, were assessed. Both options have a
significant impact on the annual waste disposal revenue budget of up to £0.829m and £1.336m
respectively. Itis strongly recommended that the current scheme is adapted in line with government
requirements only, to minimise the annual impact up to the estimated £0.829m. The potential
impact has been accounted for in future budget requirements.

Reviewing charges for non-household waste

2.12 On 26 June 2018 Cabinet resolved to delegate authority to the Director of Communities,
Economy and Transport, in consultation with the Chief Finance Officer, to set appropriate charges
to cover the disposal costs incurred by ESCC for non-household waste. These charges have
remained unchanged since 2018. The current charges partially cover the cost of disposal of soil,
hardcore, plasterboard, asbestos, and tyres. The table below illustrates current charges, the prices
that would need to be charged to recover 100% of disposal costs and a recommended revised
charging schedule that could be applied. These charges will only apply once the ‘free allowance’
has been used and are set at a level comparable to neighbouring authorities and in recognition of
other financial pressures faced by residents.

Price required to Pronosed
Current Charges | Charging Unit | recover estimated P
. Charges

disposal costs
Plasterboard | £ 4.00 | Bag / Sheet £ 780 | £ 6.00
Soil £ 4.00 | Bag £ 7.80 | £ 6.00
Hardcore £ 4.00 | Bag £ 780 | £ 6.00
Tyres £ 2.00 | Tyre £ 250 | £ 2.50
Asbestos £ 6.00 | Bag / Sheet £ 740 | £ 7.40

3 Conclusion and Reasons for Recommendations

3.1. The scheme has delivered significant savings for ESCC since it's commencement in
2018.

Page 151



3.2.  When Government’s revised regulations come into force on 31 December 2023, ESCC'’s
Chargeable Waste scheme will need to be amended for it to remain legally compliant.

3.3. The Lead Member is recommended to delegate authority to the Director of Communities,
Economy and Transport to amend the current scheme, as outlined in section 2.5 and Appendix 1
from 31 December 2023.

3.4. The Lead Member is also recommended to delegate authority to the Director of
Communities, Economy and Transport to make future changes, as required, to the amended
scheme and policy and charges.

3.5. The Lead Member is recommended to agree to the recommended price increase for paid
for non-household waste (beyond the expected free allowance), as set out below:

e £6 per bag of soil, hardcore,
e £6 per bag or sheet of plasterboard,
e £7.40 per sheet of asbestos (no free allowance for this waste type)
e £2.50 per tyre (no free allowance for this waste type)
The recommended price increase will be implemented 1 April 2024.

RUPERT CLUBB
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

Contact Officer: Anthony Pope
Tel. No. 01273 481657
Email: Anthony.pope@eastsussex.gov.uk

LOCAL MEMBERS
All

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
None

Page 152



Appendix 1

Lead Member for Transport and Environment, December 2023

Changes to the Chargeable Waste Service at East Sussex County Council Household
Waste Recycling Sites

Appendix 1

Amended Chargeable Waste Policy to comply with expected new Government regulations.

Draft new Chargeable Waste Policy

Subject to a free disposal allowance, residents still have to pay to dispose of hardcore, soll,
plasterboard, bonded asbestos and tyres at the household waste recycling sites. There is no free
allowance for bonded asbestos and tyres. There is no charge to dispose of other types of waste
accepted at our sites. Card payment only.

The free allowance delivered to any site in a single visit, in line with Government legislation, is

e Less than 100 litres and capable of being fitted into 2 x 50 litre bags of soil, hardcore or
plasterboard
Or

e A single item no larger than 2000mm x 750mm x 700mm in size

Tyres and asbestos remain classed as non-household waste so there is no free allowance for these

After the free allowance, charges apply — see below

Applying charges after the free allowance allows us to continue accepting these waste types at the
recycling sites. The charges partially cover the cost of waste disposal, they are not to make profit.

Hardcore

e Free allowance of 2 x 50 litre bags.

e A maximum of 4 visits per household in any 4-week period is permitted (one visit per week).
e £6 per bag after free allowance. Card payment only.

e Maximum bag size 50 litres (i.e. a standard rubble type sack)

e Bags part filled will be rounded up to each full bag for calculating the free allowance and
any charges due. For example, two half-filled bags will be classified as one bag.

e Forloose loads, an equivalent number of bags will be estimated by site staff.

o After the free allowance of one bulky or fitted item no larger than 2,000mm by 750mm by
700mm, further bulky or fitted items will be charged at £6 per item. This is applicable to
items like formed concrete and ceramic bathroom ware e.g., toilets and sinks. No free
allowance is permitted if this has already been used via bagged deposits.

e Includes (but is not limited to) stonework, sand, gravel, rock, clay, bricks, concrete blocks,
paving slabs, tarmac, tiles, and ceramic bathroom fittings.

e Accepted at all sites.

Soil

e Free allowance of 2 x 50 litre bags

e A maximum of 4 visits per household in any 4-week period is permitted (one visit per week).
e £6 per bag after free allowance. Card payment only.

e Maximum bag size 50 litres (i.e. a standard rubble type sack)

Page 153



Bags part filled will be rounded up to each full bag for calculating the free allowance and
any charges due. For example, two half-filled bags will be classified as one bag.

For loose loads, an equivalent number of bags will be estimated by site staff.
Accepted at all sites.

Plasterboard

Free allowance of 2 x 50 litre bags

A maximum of 4 visits per household in any 4-week period is permitted (one visit per week).
£6 per bag or sheet after free allowance. Card payment only.

Maximum bag size 50 litres (i.e. a standard rubble type sack)

Maximum sheet size 1800mm x 900mm

Bags part filled will be rounded up to each full bag for calculating the free allowance and
any charges due. For example, two half-filled bags will be classified as one bag. Similarly,
part sheets will be rounded up to each full sheet.

Includes plasterboard and plaster.
Accepted at Crowborough, Eastbourne, Hastings, and Newhaven sites only.

Bonded Asbestos

Asbestos remains classed as non-household waste so no free allowance is available

£7.40 per bag or sheet. Card payment only.

Maximum bag size 55cm x 85cm (i.e. a standard rubble type sack)

Maximum sheet size 1800mm x 900mm (6 foot by 3 foot)

Bags part filled will be rounded up to each full bag for charging purposes. For example, two
half-filled bags will be charged as one bag. Similarly, part sheets will be rounded up to each
full sheet. A resident arriving with just one part filled bag or one part sheet will be charged
the minimum charge of £7.40.

Only cement bonded asbestos is accepted. Asbestos tanks are not accepted.

Limited to 6 bags or 4 sheets per calendar month, per household

Accepted at Eastbourne, Hastings, Heathfield and Newhaven sites only

Bonded asbestos brought to these sites must be double bagged and sealed, or wrapped in
plastic and sealed.

Staff will take a record of the resident’'s name, address and vehicle registration so that the
amounts brought to the sites can be monitored to help prevent abuse of the policy and
ensure Council Tax payers money is not used to dispose of any trade waste.

See the Health & Safety Executive website for specialist advice when handling asbestos.
Do not break asbestos up yourself — as this will release harmful fibres into the atmosphere.
We strongly advise you contact a licenced asbestos removal contractor instead.

Tyres remain classed as non-household waste so no free allowance is available
£2.50 per tyre (or part tyre). Card payment only.

Limited to 4 tyres per calendar month, per household

Motorised vehicle tyres are charged for (not bicycle tyres)

Accepted at Eastbourne, Hastings, Lewes, Maresfield and Newhaven sites only.

The above waste types should not be mixed together.

Page 154




Site staff’s decision is final.

Anyone who does not pay the charges on site will be invoiced the disposal plus administration costs
via Sussex Police's Operation Crackdown vehicle tracing scheme.

If you have large quantities of these types of waste, you can consider alternatives such as hiring a
skip, buying a Hippo bag, or using a waste disposal company. Our sites are not designed to accept
large quantities of these types of waste.

There will be no charges for residents to dispose of household wastes such as green garden waste,
electricals, furniture, crockery, clay flowerpots, recycling and general waste.

The waste must be from your own home. Waste from traders/businesses is not accepted at any of
our household waste recycling sites.

The waste can only be accepted at our sites if the work has been carried out/removed by the
householder themselves.

Where residents use a contractor to do works at their property the contractor must arrange for the
disposal of the waste either by arranging a skip hire or taking it to a licensed commercial waste
facility (not a household waste recycling site). In the case of asbestos, contact the Asbestos
Removal Contractors Association for details of contractors who can remove and dispose of all types
of asbestos.

Page 155



https://www.arca.org.uk/
https://www.arca.org.uk/

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 20 November 2023
	4 Alternative Weed Maintenance Trials 2023
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6

	5 Rural Verges as Wildlife Corridors - Trial of Early Season Reduction in Rural Grass Cutting
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5

	6 Community Match Schemes for 2024/25
	7 Changes to the Chargeable Waste Service at East Sussex County Council Household Waste Recycling Sites
	Appendix 1


